
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN 
HALL, LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__, Montaño __, 

Guilin__, Anderson__. 
 

3. INVOCATION 
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 

Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
6. PRESENTATIONS 

 
a. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 

Crown Point Property Services as the Business of the Month. 
 

b. Presentation and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the annual audit by 
the Town’s independent auditors, Henry and Horne. 
 

c. Presentation of the Quarterly Financial Report as of June 30, 2014 (Year-
End) and the Quarterly Financial Report as of September 30, 2014. 
 

7. ADJOURN TO A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

a. Public Hearing on Resolution No. 1486-14: and 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PROPOSING A ONE-TIME SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE STATE-
IMPOSED EXPENDITURE LIMITATION AND SETTING A SPECIAL 
ELECTION FOR MAY 19, 2015 (First public hearing and reading of 
Resolution No. 1486-14 held on December 1, 2014).  
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



8. ADJOURN FROM A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL. 
 

9. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.   
 
a. Approval of a utility easement between the Town of Florence and Arizona 

Public Service Company for the Territory Square Project. 
 

b. Authorization to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with the 
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce for calendar year 2015. 
 

c. Approval of signing a contract with Apache Underground and Excavation 
for the Bailey Street Waterline. 
 

d. Recommendation of Approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control on Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association’s 
applications for a Special Event Liquor License for  social hours on 
January 8, January 22, February 5, February 19, March 5, March 19, 
November 12,  and December 10, 2015. 
 

e. Approval of the December 1 and December 8, 2014 Town Council minutes. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing staff to issue a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) to the short-listed design-build firms for the proposed 
Fitness and Recreation Center and establish a maximum project budget of 
$6,750,000. 
 

b. Announcement of the Mayor’s appointments to the following liaison 
positions: 
 

a. Arts Commission 
b. Anthem Area  
c. Budget Committee      
d. Central Arizona Association of Governments  
e. Emergency Operations Center     
f. Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce     
g. Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. 
h. Florence Unified School District     
i. Four Parks Area (Florence Gardens/Caliente/Casitas) 
j. Historic District Advisory Commission    
k. Leagues of Cities and Towns Resolution Committee  
l. Joint Use Library Advisory Board     
m. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
n. Pinal County Government Alliance     
o. Pinal Partnership   
p. Planning and Zoning Commission 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



q. Public Safety Retirement (Police and Fire) 
r. Maricopa Association of Governments  
s. Native American Community Tribes (Tohono O’odham Village and 

Gila River Indian Community) 
 

11. MANAGER’S REPORT 

12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 

13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON DECEMBER 11, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mike Farina, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Annual Audit for Fiscal Year Ended  
                     June 30, 2014 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Annual Audit for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014                 Meeting Date:  December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Accept the Town’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 
30, 2014. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town’s year-end financial report was audited by the Town’s independent auditor 
Henry & Horne.  The auditor has issued a clean opinion on the Town’s financial 
statements and they will be here tonight to present the audit report and audit findings. 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents the Town’s financial position and 
fund balances as of the end of the fiscal year, as well as the results of the financial 
activity throughout the year. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  
Auditor Letter to Management 















































































































































































































































































































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6c. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mike Farina, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Quarterly Financial Reports 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Quarterly Financial Reports                                  Meeting Date:  December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Presentation only, no action required. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

 
Highlights of the quarterly financial reports for June 30, 2014 (year-end) and September 
30, 2014 will be presented. The full reports are attached. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Quarterly Financial Report as of June 30, 2014 (Year-End) 
Quarterly Financial Report as of September 30, 2014 
 



Town of Florence 

Quarterly Financial Report 

As of June 30, 2014 (Year-End) 

(unaudited) 

 

Introduction 

The following report highlights the financial results of the Town through the fourth quarter of the 

fiscal year. The report presents the results of Town revenues, expenditures and fund balances and 

includes comparison of current year actual figures to the budget and prior year. This report is 

unaudited. The final audited report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 

completed in December 2014. 

Highlights 

 Major Town revenues are meeting or exceeding budget expectations and are ahead of the 

prior year. 

o Sales tax ended 11% ahead of budget expectations and 11% ahead of the prior year.   

o State-shared sales tax ended 1% ahead of budget expectations and 6% ahead of the 

prior year. 

o State-shared income tax met budget expectations and ended 9% ahead of the prior 

year. 

o Vehicle license tax ended 6% ahead of budget expectations and 7% ahead of the prior 

year. 

o Highway user revenue ended 1% lower (-$9,164) than budget expectations but was 

3% ($44,571) ahead of the prior year. 

o Transportation excise tax ended 7% ahead of budget expectations and the prior year. 

 Town expenditures finished within the budget established for fiscal year 2013-14. 

 General Fund:  Excluding transfers, revenue exceeded budget expectations by 6% or 

$676,000 and expenditures were within budget resulting in savings of $902,000. 

 Capital Improvements Fund:  Excluding transfers, revenue exceeded budget expectations 

by 23% or $276,333. Expenditures were within budget and incomplete project budgets 

were carried forward to the next fiscal year. 

 HURF:  Excluding transfers, revenue exceeded budget expectations by 5% or $121,185 

and expenditures were within budget. Of the $4.5 million capital budget, 4% was 

expended with many project budgets carried forward to the next fiscal year. 

 Water Utility:  Fee revenue nearly met budget expectations (98%) and expenditures were 

within budget. Of the $4.8 million capital budget, 6% was expended with many project 

budgets carried forward to the next fiscal year. 

 Wastewater Utility:  Fee revenue exceeded budget expectations by 2% and expenditures 

were within budget. Of the $2.3 million capital budget, 3% was expended with many 

project budgets carried forward to the next fiscal year. 

 Sanitation:  Fee revenue exceeded budget expectations by 1% and expenditures were 

within budget. 

 Fund balances are healthy and normal.



2 | P a g e  
 

Major Revenues 

Throughout this section of the finance report, monthly revenue results for the first half of the 

year is compared to the budget and prior year. An updated estimate (forecast) of the annual 

revenue based on the results of the first nine months of the year is also presented.  In the monthly 

revenue charts, the light-shaded graph columns represent forecasted amounts. 

 

Sales Tax 

The Town imposes a two percent (2%) transaction privilege tax 

rate on retail sales and services made within the Town boundaries. 

This tax is commonly referred to as sales tax. The total tax rate 

within the Town is 8.7 percent, which also includes the State and 

Pinal County tax rates. Sales tax revenue supports the Capital 

Improvements Fund (sales tax on private construction projects), 

Construction Tax Fund (sales tax on governmental entity 

construction projects), Food Tax Fund (sales tax on food for home consumption) and the General 

Fund (all other sales tax). 

 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected sales tax revenue is $3,670,000. 

 A total of $4,058,543 sales tax was collected this fiscal year. This is $388,543 or 11% 

greater than the projected amount and $388,283 greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the sales tax collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

Town Sales 

Tax

monthly 

projections

 current 

year actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 257,805         283,062    10% 8% 261,190       

Aug 282,510         366,237    30% 27% 288,519       

Sep 258,193         351,956    36% 41% 249,424       

Oct 251,438         382,733    52% 58% 242,296       

Nov 366,601         283,804    -23% -11% 319,595       

Dec 334,510         416,711    25% 10% 377,459       

Jan 310,099         285,896    -8% 1% 282,981       

Feb 284,460         365,454    28% 26% 289,615       

Mar 264,375         346,879    31% 40% 247,841       

Apr 346,792         324,114    -7% -13% 370,700       

May 301,320         316,588    5% -12% 360,747       

Jun 411,896         335,109    -19% -12% 379,893       

YTD total 3,670,000      4,058,543  3,670,260    

YTD variance 388,543    11% 11% 388,283       

Sales Tax Rate 

in Florence 

Town 2.0% 

Pinal County 1.1% 

State of Arizona  5.6% 

Total 8.7% 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 The table below breaks down the sales tax collected by type. General and sales tax on 

food and private construction were ahead of projections. Sales tax on government 

construction was behind projections. 

 

 
 

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly Town Sales Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative Town Sales Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

Town Sales 

Tax by Type
General

 Private 

Construction 

Government 

Construction
 Food  Total 

Jul 165,685        99,011          -               18,366          283,062.00    

Aug 202,270        141,373        7,295            15,299          366,237.00    

Sep 211,097        125,508        -               15,351          351,956.00    

Oct 198,967        152,369        9,710            21,687          382,733.00    

Nov 148,415        101,586        12,364          21,439          283,804.00    

Dec 273,764        109,348        13,336          20,263          416,711.00    

Jan 175,790        71,434          11,718          26,954          285,896.00    

Feb 197,925        134,440        9,072            24,017          365,454.00    

Mar 204,585        107,358        11,549          23,387          346,879.00    

Apr 201,828        92,254          5,277            24,755          324,114        

May 164,802        141,278        7,279            3,229            316,588        

Jun 186,446        104,210        28,009          16,444          335,109        

YTD total 2,331,574      1,380,169      115,609        231,191        4,058,543      

forecast (trend) 2,331,574      1,380,169      115,609        231,191        4,058,543      

budget 2,200,000      1,100,000      160,000        210,000        3,670,000      

proj. variance 131,574        280,169        (44,391)         21,191          388,543        



4 | P a g e  
 

 The following table and charts below show sales tax collected by type by month for the 

General Fund. Total general sales tax collected was $2,331,574 and was $131,574 or 6% 

ahead of projections; however, was $19,925 or 1% lower than the prior year. 

 

 

  

 
 

 

General 

Fund Town 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from projection

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 145,861        165,685        14% -3% 170,394        

Aug 167,489        202,270        21% 5% 193,193        

Sep 153,754        211,097        37% 21% 173,958        

Oct 154,718        198,967        29% 9% 182,790        

Nov 236,783        148,415        -37% -24% 195,828        

Dec 181,753        273,764        51% 32% 207,697        

Jan 206,113        175,790        -15% -17% 211,330        

Feb 184,033        197,925        8% -12% 225,584        

Mar 157,076        204,585        30% 23% 166,258        

Apr 200,566        201,828        1% -6% 214,675        

May 153,642        164,802        7% -18% 200,311        

Jun 258,212        186,446        -28% -11% 209,481        

YTD total 2,200,000      2,331,574      2,351,499      

YTD variance 131,574        6% -1% (19,925)         

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly Town Sales Tax 
General Fund 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative Town Sales Tax 
General Fund 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



5 | P a g e  
 

General Fund State-shared Revenue 

As with all Arizona municipalities, the Town receives certain state revenues based on 

population. State-shared revenue includes sales tax, income tax and vehicle license tax.  

 

State-shared Sales Tax 

 

 The annual budget-projected state-shared sales tax revenue is $2,206,504. 

 At year end, the total collected is $2,222,724.  This is $16,220 or 1% greater than the 

projected amount and $132,555 or 6% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

 

State-shared 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 179,072         178,913         0% 5% 169,848         

Aug 168,470         171,410         2% 8% 158,459         

Sep 174,704         175,258         0% 7% 164,126         

Oct 175,919         172,748         -2% 5% 164,560         

Nov 173,089         175,336         1% 6% 165,574         

Dec 179,714         181,802         1% 6% 171,003         

Jan 214,755         230,007         7% 13% 204,387         

Feb 176,353         173,797         -1% 3% 169,143         

Mar 182,320         183,733         1% 8% 169,958         

Apr 205,171         203,721         -1% 4% 194,972         

May 187,192         187,276         0% 6% 176,160         

Jun 189,745         188,723         -1% 4% 181,979         

YTD total 2,206,504      2,222,724      2,090,169      

YTD variance 16,220           1% 6% 132,555         

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly State-shared Sales Tax Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative State-shared Sales Tax 
Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



6 | P a g e  
 

State-shared Income Tax 

 

 The annual budget-projected state-shared income tax revenue is $2,848,920. 

 At year end, the total collected is $2,846,311, which is slightly below the projection and 

$237,863 or 9% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

  

 
 

 

State-shared 

Income Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 237,410         237,411         0% 9% 217,371       

Aug 237,410         237,410         0% 9% 217,370       

Sep 237,410         237,411         0% 9% 217,371       

Oct 237,410         237,411         0% 9% 217,371       

Nov 237,410         237,410         0% 9% 217,370       

Dec 237,410         237,411         0% 9% 217,371       

Jan 237,410         237,411         0% 9% 217,370       

Feb 237,410         235,120         -1% 8% 217,371       

Mar 237,410         237,329         0% 9% 217,371       

Apr 237,410         237,329         0% 9% 217,370       

May 237,410         237,329         0% 9% 217,371       

Jun 237,410         237,329         0% 9% 217,371       

YTD total 2,848,920      2,846,311      2,608,448     

YTD variance (2,609)           0% 9% 237,863       

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly State-shared Income Tax Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative State-shared Income Tax 
Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



7 | P a g e  
 

 

Vehicle License Tax 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected vehicle license tax revenue is $1,119,567. 

 At year end, the total collected is $1,188,924.  This is $69,357 or 6% greater than the 

projected amount and $75,928 or 7% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

 
 

Vehicle 

License Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 92,073           101,813         11% 10% 92,559         

Aug 97,488           100,820         3% 6% 95,039         

Sep 89,623           91,075           2% 4% 87,533         

Oct 92,134           104,544         13% 10% 95,262         

Nov 87,350           83,894           -4% -4% 87,229         

Dec 81,298           87,289           7% 11% 78,979         

Jan 92,718           102,515         11% 8% 94,779         

Feb 91,849           49,010           -47% -44% 87,624         

Mar 99,733           152,919         53% 55% 98,928         

Apr 97,518           108,738         12% 8% 100,296       

May 102,917         103,615         1% 1% 102,164       

Jun 94,866           102,692         8% 11% 92,604         

YTD total 1,119,567      1,188,924      1,112,996     

YTD variance 69,357           6% 7% 75,928         

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly Vehicle License Tax Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$300,000

$600,000

$900,000

$1,200,000

$1,500,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative Vehicle License Tax Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



8 | P a g e  
 

Highway User Revenue 

Highway user revenue is state-shared and in addition to population, highway user revenue 

distribution is also based on gasoline sales. It consists of tax on gasoline, a portion of the vehicle 

license tax and other transportation related fees and must be used solely for street and highway 

purposes. This revenue is recorded in the Highway User Revenue Fund. 

 

 The annual budget-projected highway user revenue is $1,659,986. 

 At year end, the total collected is $1,650,822, slightly less than the projected amount and 

$44,571 or 3% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

 

Highway User 

Revenue

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 125,872         129,734         3% 9% 119,180       

Aug 125,136         120,910         -3% -2% 123,491       

Sep 127,443         126,382         -1% 3% 122,804       

Oct 117,433         119,995         2% 5% 114,017       

Nov 119,405         119,662         0% 1% 118,209       

Dec 132,302         129,846         -2% 1% 129,009       

Jan 128,629         136,278         6% 8% 126,425       

Feb 141,668         134,051         -5% -1% 135,220       

Mar 161,334         157,603         -2% 2% 154,605       

Apr 172,135         171,401         0% 3% 166,011       

May 149,785         150,320         0% 1% 149,523       

Jun 158,844         154,640         -3% 5% 147,757       

YTD total 1,659,986      1,650,822      1,606,251     

YTD variance (9,164)           -1% 3% 44,571         

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Monthly Highway User Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e

b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Cumulative Highway User Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



9 | P a g e  
 

Transportation Excise Tax Revenue 

Transportation Excise Tax revenue is revenue that was approved by the voters of Pinal County to 

be used solely for highway and street purposes. The Town receives a share of the revenue from 

the County based on population. 

 

 The annual budget-projected transportation excise tax revenue is $915,000. 

 At year end, the total collected is $982,458.  This is $67,459 or 7% greater than the 

projected amount and $61,652 or 7% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

  

 

Transportation 

Excise Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 75,163           80,140           7% 5% 76,154           

Aug 76,733           81,312           6% 4% 77,885           

Sep 71,418           80,420           13% 12% 71,961           

Oct 73,974           81,938           11% 14% 71,906           

Nov 74,597           79,369           6% 9% 72,725           

Dec 71,533           78,997           10% 9% 72,211           

Jan 73,544           81,725           11% 10% 74,576           

Feb 85,663           88,489           3% 3% 86,004           

Mar 74,943           80,070           7% 6% 75,610           

Apr 75,718           81,528           8% 9% 74,913           

May 85,302           89,197           5% 2% 87,302           

Jun 76,411           79,273           4% 0% 79,559           

YTD total 914,999         982,458         920,806         

YTD variance 67,459           7% 7% 61,652           

$0

$50,000

$100,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Monthly Transportation Excise Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Cumulative Transportation Excise Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



10 | P a g e  
 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the Town’s main operating fund accounting for most of the Town’s 

services, including fire and police public safety, culture and recreation, community development 

and general government administration. The General Fund is primarily supported by local and 

state-shared taxes. 

General Fund Revenue 

The majority of Town revenue is projected to come from state-shared revenue (50%) and local 

sales tax (18%). The remainder comes from property tax (7%), building permit fees (2%), 

franchise fees (3%), charges for services (6%), fines and forfeitures (1%) and other sources 

(1%). 

 

 

 

 

  

18% 

12% 

7% 

2% 
3% 

50% 

6% 1% 
1% 

General Fund funding sources 

sales tax

transfers in

property tax

building permit

franchise fees

intergovernmental

charges for services

fines and forfeitures

other revenue



11 | P a g e  
 

Major revenues supporting the General Fund are discussed above in the Major Revenue section 

of this report. 

 

 The annual budget-projected General Fund revenue, excluding transfers, is $10,936,762. 

 At year end, the total collected is $11,613,037. This is $676,275 or 6% greater than the 

projected amount and $788,038 or 7% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

 

General Fund 

Revenue

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 725,773         763,649         5% 3% 742,843         

Aug 822,957         824,631         0% -2% 839,034         

Sep 921,453         999,210         8% 9% 916,847         

Oct 1,016,678      1,094,423      8% 5% 1,044,466      

Nov 930,771         846,626         -9% 1% 839,751         

Dec 923,781         1,100,092      19% 21% 908,227         

Jan 874,561         884,419         1% 5% 842,563         

Feb 859,048         791,893         -8% -6% 844,227         

Mar 909,550         1,092,004      20% 18% 927,790         

Apr 1,036,412      1,078,537      4% -1% 1,086,364      

May 844,638         1,047,332      24% 23% 849,475         

Jun 1,071,140      1,090,221      2% 11% 983,412         

YTD total 10,936,762    11,613,037    10,824,999    

YTD variance 676,275         6% 7% 788,038         

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Monthly General Fund Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

ju
l

a
u

g

s
e
p

o
c
t

n
o

v

d
e

c

ja
n

fe
b

m
a

r

a
p

r

m
a

y

ju
n

Cumulative General Fund Revenue 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



12 | P a g e  
 

 

 The table above compares actual current revenue to the budgeted amount and the prior 

year for each of the major components of the General Fund revenue. 

 At year end, the total revenue received, including transfers in, is 109% of the budgeted 

amount and exceeded the prior year by 14%. 

  

General Fund Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received

 prior year 

actual 

% change 

from prior year
 $ diff 

taxes

sales tax 2,200,000$    2,331,574$    106% 2,351,499$    -1% (19,925)$       

property tax 814,526        796,588        98% 775,131        3% 21,457          

   total taxes 3,014,526      3,128,162      104% 3,126,630      0% 1,532            

licenses and permits

building permit fee 245,000        390,759        159% 345,757        13% 45,002          

other licenses/permits 39,000          47,762          122% 43,677          9% 4,085            

   total licenses/permits 284,000        438,521        154% 389,434        13% 49,087          

franchise fees

APS franchise fee 267,000        273,968        103% 265,950        3% 8,018            

other franchise fees 153,180        280,191        183% 119,641        134% 160,550        

   total franchise fees 420,180        554,159        132% 385,591        44% 168,568        

intergovernmental

state-shared sales tax 2,206,504      2,222,724      101% 2,090,169      6% 132,555        

state-shared income tax 2,848,922      2,846,311      100% 2,608,448      9% 237,863        

vehicle license tax 1,119,567      1,188,924      106% 1,112,996      7% 75,928          

   total intergovernmental 6,174,993      6,257,959      101% 5,811,613      8% 446,346        

charges for services 765,338        728,555        95% 750,594        -3% (22,039)         

fines and forfeitures 180,410        195,685        108% 172,493        13% 23,192          

other revenues 97,315          309,996        319% 188,644        64% 121,352        

transfers in 1,507,137      1,935,065      128% 1,054,074      84% 880,991        

total 12,443,899$  13,548,102$  109% 11,879,073$  14% 1,669,029$    



13 | P a g e  
 

General Fund Expenditures 

The General Fund accounts 

for the majority of the 

Town’s services including, 

public safety – police and 

fire/EMS services; culture 

and recreation – parks 

maintenance, recreation 

programs, fitness center, 

aquatics, special events, 

senior center and library 

services; community 

development; and general 

government – elected 

officials, administration, 

town attorney, courts, 

finance, information 

technology and human 

resources. 

By function, expenditures 

for public safety make up 

nearly half of the total 

budget in the General Fund 

at 47%; 28% is for general 

government; 13% is for 

culture and recreation; 6% is 

for community development, 

which includes planning, 

zoning and building 

inspection; and, 1% for 

economic development. A 

total of 5% is transferred to 

other funds. 

By type, expenditures for 

personal services (employee 

salary and benefits) make up 76% of the total General Fund budget. The rest of the General Fund 

consists of purchased services (non-employee services) – 11%; supplies – 4%; and other (dues, 

memberships, training) – 4%. 

The following table compares current year-to-date actuals to the budget and prior year amounts 

by department.  

public safety 
47% 

community 
development 

6% culture and 
recreation 

13% 

economic 
development 

1% 

transfers out 
5% 

council, 
mgmt, atty 

8% 

support 
svcs, other 

20% 

General Fund Expenditures by function - FY2014 
Budget 

personal 
services 

76% 

purchased 
services 

11% 

supplies 
4% 

other 
4% 

transfers out 
5% 

General Fund Expenditures by type - FY2014 
Budget 



14 | P a g e  
 

 

 The General Fund budget, excluding transfers, is $12,592,706.  

 At year end, $11,690,707 or 93% was expended resulting in $901,999 in budget savings. 

 Most departments came in under budget with the exception of Legal Services, Human 

Resources and General Government. 

o Expenditures in the Legal Services Department exceeded the budget by $16,285 

because of the additional outside legal services that were necessary to resolve the 

firefighter social security issue. 

o Expenditures in the Human Resources Department exceeded the budget by $2,869 

due to a change to recording all unemployment expenditures in this department 

rather than as they were budgeted in other departments. 

o Expenditures in the General Government exceeded the budget by $13,046 

because of costs related to the potential annexation, reallocation of liability 

insurance costs and payment of past due property taxes and assessments for 

property that was stricken to the Town due to non-payment of those taxes. 

 The following tables summarize the General Fund expenditures by function and type. 

 

General Fund 

Expenditures by 

Department

budget
 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

town council 152,324$       105,556$       69% -10% 117,074$       

administration 695,304         665,253         96% 19% 559,693         

courts 278,448         248,078         89% 12% 221,714         

legal services 255,460         271,745         106% 55% 175,082         

finance 908,947         815,930         90% 5% 775,690         

human resources 217,794         220,663         101% 27% 174,050         

community development 561,700         512,876         91% 20% 428,890         

police 3,768,703      3,370,809      89% 6% 3,166,388      

fire/EMS 2,534,446      2,486,390      98% 10% 2,255,662      

information technology 536,365         525,383         98% 6% 496,425         

parks and recreation 1,345,340      1,217,832      91% 5% 1,157,096      

library 367,040         359,449         98% 15% 311,733         

engineering 176,435         106,145         60% 6% 99,858           

general government 601,185         614,231         102% 49% 412,264         

cemetery 25,550           13,396           52% 1% 13,326           

economic development 167,665         156,971         94% -21% 197,981         

total 12,592,706$   11,690,707$   93% 11% 10,562,926$   

General Fund 

Expenditures by Function
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

general government 3,671,377$    3,480,235$    95% 18% 2,945,318$    

public safety 6,303,149      5,857,199      93% 8% 5,422,050      

community development 738,135         619,021         84% 17% 528,748         

culture and recreation 1,712,380      1,577,281      92% 7% 1,468,829      

economic development 167,665         156,971         94% -21% 197,981         

total 12,592,706$   11,690,707$   93% 11% 10,562,926$   



15 | P a g e  
 

  

Highway User Revenue Fund 

The Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) accounts for operation, maintenance and capital 

expenditures of Town streets and highways (public works). HURF is primarily supported by 

state-shared highway user revenue and transportation excise tax received from Pinal County. 

These revenues must be used on street and highway expenditures. 

Revenue 

 

 At year end, fund revenue exceeded budget expectations by $130,935 or 5% and is 

$155,913 or 6% greater than the prior year. 

 Highway user revenue and transportation excise tax are explained and discussed in more 

detail in the major revenue section earlier in this report. 

Expenditures 

 

 Only 27% of the budget is expended because capital outlay, the largest component of 

expenditures, is only 4% expended. 

 Excluding capital outlay, $1,572,315 was expended out of a budget of $1,952,186 

resulting in only 81% of the budget being expended and $379,871 in budget savings. 

 Budgeted capital outlay, in the amount of $2,290,700, was carried forward to FY2014/15. 

General Fund 

Expenditures by Type
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

salaries and benefits 10,191,461$   9,445,388$    93% 13% 8,349,582$    

purchased services 1,336,887      1,338,152      100% 20% 1,118,219      

supplies 570,591         570,217         100% -23% 739,825         

other 493,767         336,950         68% -5% 355,300         

total 12,592,706$   11,690,707$   93% 11% 10,562,926$   

HURF Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

highway user revenue 1,659,987$ 1,650,822$          99% 3% 1,606,251$    

transportation excise tax 915,000      982,458               107% 7% 920,806        

other revenues 17,000       79,892                 470% 71% 46,656          

transfers in 9,750         19,500                 200% 540% 3,046            

total 2,601,737$ 2,732,672$          105% 6% 2,576,759$    

HURF 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 
% expended

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 1,272,506$    1,088,369$    86% -4% 1,130,939$    

purchased services 251,200        268,553        107% 8% 248,882        

supplies 423,400        212,573        50% 2% 208,997        

capital outlay 4,525,000      192,903        4% -17% 231,081        

other 5,080            2,820            56% 18% 2,400            

total 6,477,186$    1,765,218$    27% -3% 1,822,299$    



16 | P a g e  
 

 

Capital Improvement Fund 

The Capital Improvement Fund (CIP) accounts for many of the Town capital projects including 

buildings and building improvements, park improvements, land acquisitions and equipment. 

Expenditures not included in the Capital Improvement Fund are those related to streets and 

highways, which are accounted for in the Highway User Revenue Fund. The Capital 

Improvement Fund is primarily supported by construction-related sales tax. 

Revenue 

 

 The annual budget-projected Capital Projects Fund revenue is $1,180,000. 

 At year end, the total revenue is $1,456,333. This is $276,333 or 23% greater than the 

projected amount and $405,385 or 39% greater than the prior year. 

 

HURF Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

equipment:

backhoe attachments 25,000$        -$             0%

streets and highways:

Adamsville (Main to Central) 1,600,000     -               0%

Florence Gardens street improvements 40,000         -               0%

State Highways 79B and 287 intersection improvements 250,000        46,469         19%

Diversion Dam Road improvements 1,575,000     58,866         4%

Street signalization 150,000        22,732         15%

Felix Road milling and paving from Hiller to Heritage 450,000        -               0%

Pinal Street drainage improvements from Butte  to Ruggles 125,000        -               0%

Hunt Highway overlay to County line 110,000        45,325         41%

Butte Avenue pavement sealing from Hwy 79A to Diffin Road 175,000        -               0%

Offsite driveway improvements at Fire Station #2 -               19,511         

Stormwater master plan 25,000         -               0%

total streets and highways 4,500,000     192,903        4%

total 4,525,000$   192,903$      4%

Capital Projects Fund 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

private construction tax 1,100,000$     1,380,169$     125% 38% 1,000,661$     

other revenues 80,000           76,164           95% 51% 50,287           

total 1,180,000$     1,456,333$     123% 39% 1,050,948$     



17 | P a g e  
 

 

 The major revenue of this fund, private construction tax, is $280,165 or 25% greater than 

the budgeted amount and $379,508 or 38% greater than the prior year. 

 The following two charts show the revenue collected each month and the monthly 

cumulative collections, respectively. 

 

 

 

 

 

Private 

Construction 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 91,667           99,011           8% 31% 75,460         

Aug 91,667           141,373         54% 155% 55,345         

Sep 91,667           125,508         37% 124% 55,999         

Oct 91,667           152,369         66% 2038% 7,126           

Nov 91,667           101,586         11% 9% 93,389         

Dec 91,667           109,348         19% -27% 149,281       

Jan 91,667           71,434           -22% 66% 42,910         

Feb 91,667           134,440         47% 267% 36,591         

Mar 91,667           107,358         17% 78% 60,263         

Apr 91,667           92,254           1% -32% 136,553       

May 91,667           141,278         54% 1% 140,387       

Jun 91,667           104,210         14% -29% 147,357       

YTD total 1,100,004      1,380,169      1,000,661     

YTD variance 280,165         25% 38% 379,508       

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Monthly Construction Sales Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r

A
p
r

M
a

y

J
u
n

Cumulative Construction Sales Tax 

FY2014 FY2013 budgeted



18 | P a g e  
 

Expenditures 

 At year end, as illustrated in the table below, 66% or $3,377,883 of the $5,087,412 

budget is expended. Many of the unfinished projects were carried forward to FY 2014/15. 

 

 

  

Capital Projects Fund Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

Police

  security camera system upgrade 35,000         13,945         40%

  911 ops tower -              20,482         

  Anthem substation FFE 15,000         14,159         94%

50,000         48,586         97%

Fire/EMS

  heart monitors/defibrilator replacements 100,000       99,845         100%

  patient care reporting system 35,000         33,664         96%

  SCBAs/turnouts 73,509         45,918         62%

  voice amplifiers 35,000         -              0%

  Anthem substation FFE 15,000         13,442         90%

  firetruck 1,151,553    1,196,178    104%

1,410,062    1,389,047    99%

Parks and Recreation

  parks - 3 barbecue and 5 water closets for parks 4,500          -              0%

  Fitness Center - improvements -              3,888          

  Aero Modeler Park improvements 6,000          6,000          100%

  Bailey Street Community Park improvements -              -              

  downtown park improvements -              -              

  mower/bunker rake/ATV 29,000         24,989         86%

  scoreboards for ball parks 44,000         9,442          21%

  Main Street playground equipment 125,000       149,483       120%

  Padilla Park improvements 350,000       108,932       31%

  softball field #3 lighting 100,000       -              0%

  land acquisition -              -              

658,500       302,734       46%

Public Works

  tractor 30,000         -              0%

  crosswalk improvements 240,000       235,972       98%

  neighborhood lighting project 500,000       -              0%

770,000       235,972       31%

General Government

  computers and printers 67,600         55,259         82%

  council meeting agenda system -              7,550          

  utility acquisition -              182,307       

  wireless interconnection redundancy upgrade 157,650       50,500         32%

225,250       295,616       131%



19 | P a g e  
 

 

 

  

Capital Projects Fund Expenditures (cont.) budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

Facilities

  Town Hall - paint exterior 21,700         19,500         90%

  land acquisition 500,000       298,569       60%

  Territory Square CLOMR/LOMR and site work 600,000       478,386       80%

  Police Station improvements 248,500       30,893         12%

  Fire Station - patch bay floors 6,000          -              0%

  Public Works building improvements 30,000         5,040          17%

  Fitness Center - replace 3 HVAC units 24,000         -              0%

  Heritage Park - new roof 5,000          573             11%

  Heritage Park - concession area cooler 1,200          209             17%

  Senior Center - replace 2 HVAC units 18,000         -              0%

  Senior Center - repair restroom floors and sinks 9,200          -              0%

  Town facilities maintenance 100,000       -              0%

  Fire Station, Fitness Center, Silver King Marketplace - roof repair 52,300         22,398         43%

  Town Hall - HVAC rebalancing 15,000         4,923          33%

  relocate temporary fire station structure -              31,403         

  Town Hall - administration conference room expansion 16,200         12,635         78%

  Roadway for fueling facility - as built survey -              3,300          

  Brunekant stabilization, rehabilitation 250,000       184,701       74%

  1,897,100    1,092,530    58%

Fleet

  4 floor jacks 8,000          -              0%

  2 battery chargers 2,000          2,749          137%

  AC recovery/recycling/recharge system 12,000         4,238          35%

  all-inclusing diagnostics system 23,500         3,912          17%

  heavy-duty transmission fluid system 19,000         -              0%

  coolant recovery system 5,500          2,499          45%

  lift jack 6,500          -              0%

76,500         13,398         18%

total 5,087,412$  3,377,883$  66%



20 | P a g e  
 

Water Utility Fund 

The Water Utility Fund accounts for water utility operations, maintenance and capital projects 

and is primarily supported by water utility usage fees. 

Revenue 

 

 At year end, 99% of the total budgeted revenue amount was received and was 6% less 

than the prior year. 

 The decrease in total revenue was the result of a transfer in of $348,000 from CDBG 

funds; whereas, water utility fee revenue was 5% or $147,200 greater than the prior year. 

Expenditures 

 

 Only 25% of the budget was expended because capital outlay, the largest component of 

expenditures, was only 6% expended. 

 Excluding capital outlay, $1,326,110 was expended out of a budget of $1,674,603 

resulting in 79% of the budget being expended and $348,493 in budget savings. 

 Budgeted capital outlay, in the amount of $3,449,900, was carried forward to FY2014/15. 

Water Utility 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

water utility fees 2,885,100$     2,841,569$     98% 5% 2,694,369$     

other revenues 77,000            100,397          130% -77% 440,174          

total 2,962,100$     2,941,966$     99% -6% 3,134,543$     

Water Utility 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 
% expended

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 491,400$        384,092$        78% 22% 314,486$        

purchased services 586,250          429,317          73% 19% 361,222          

supplies 146,900          98,727            67% 7% 92,584            

capital outlay 4,836,000       297,075          6% -                 

other 450,053          413,974          92% -1% 418,052          

total 6,510,603$     1,623,185$     25% 37% 1,186,344$     



21 | P a g e  
 

 

  

Water Utility Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

new well in North Florence 45,000$        10,415$        23%

relocation of water line at INS Admin Building 110,000        -               0%

water storage tank at Florence Gardens 1,400,000      80,543          6%

fire hydrant replacements 60,000          61,739          103%

replace well #3 235,000        17,936          8%

water valve replacements 105,000        38,606          37%

water line replacement on Main Street 92,000          -               0%

4" and under water line replacements in various locations 400,000        1,930            0%

fire hydrant system replacement in downtown 35,000          -               0%

water line replacement from Main Street to Centennial and 20th 

Street to high school
438,000        -               0%

loop system to storage tank for North Florence main supply 105,000        -               0%

water line extension from well #5 to well # 4 along Willow 918,000        39,735          4%

water line from well #3 and well #4 supply site to Bowling Road 70,000          -               0%

water line extension from Butte to Ruggles with loop to Granite 783,000        46,171          6%

VFDs on booster pumps 40,000          -               0%

total 4,836,000$    297,075$       6%



22 | P a g e  
 

Wastewater Utility Fund 

The Wastewater Utility Fund accounts for wastewater (sewer) utility operations, maintenance 

and capital projects and is primarily supported by wastewater utility usage fees. 

Revenue 

 

 At year end, 83% of the total budgeted revenue amount was received. 

 Wastewater utility fee revenue was $78,284 or 2% greater than the budgeted amount and 

$293,850 or 8% greater than the prior year. 

Expenditures 

 

 Only 48% of the budget is expended because capital outlay, the largest component of 

expenditures, is only 3% expended. 

 Excluding capital outlay, $2,225,160 was expended out of a budget of $2,466,372 

resulting in 90% of the budget being expended and $241,212 in budget savings. 

 Budgeted capital outlay, in the amount of $1,232,600, was carried forward to FY2014/15. 

 

Wastewater Utility 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

wastewater fees 3,751,652$    3,829,936$    102% 8% 3,536,086$    

loan proceeds 870,000         -                0% 0% -                

other revenues 70,000           79,002           113% -3% 81,037           

total 4,691,652$    3,908,938$    83% 8% 3,617,123$    

Wastewater Utility 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 616,000$       535,443$       87% 73% 309,954$       

purchased services 1,021,110      890,682         87% 7% 834,183         

supplies 179,100         149,214         83% 12% 133,414         

capital outlay 2,314,500      59,875           3% 0% -                

other 29,600           67,028           226% 275% 17,897           

debt service 620,562         582,793         94% 0% 581,758         

total 4,780,872$    2,285,035$    48% 22% 1,877,206$    

Wastewater Utility Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

sewer main extension and replacement as needed 400,000$       -                0%

Florence wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) expansion 525,000         11,514           2%

18" sewer bore across SH79 at Hunt Highway 100,000         -                0%

sewer line extension to expand North Florence WWTP capacity 30,000           -                0%

polishing lagoons and berm reconstruction at WWTP 214,000         -                0%

office lab space at WWTP 288,000         7,414             3%

office space renovation at WWTP 57,500           -                0%

expand effluent discharge system 700,000         40,947           6%

total 2,314,500$     59,875$         3%



23 | P a g e  
 

Sanitation Utility Fund 

The Sanitation Utility Fund accounts for sanitation utility operations, maintenance and capital 

projects and is primarily supported by sanitation utility usage fees. 

Sanitation Utility Fund Revenue 

 

 Sanitation utility fee revenue exceeded expectations with 101% received. 

 At year end, fees were 38% lower than the prior year due to a reduction in the fee amount 

with the switch to contracted trash pickup services. 

Sanitation Utility Fund Expenditures 

 

 At year end, $712,213 was expended out of a budget of $759,395 resulting in 94% of the 

budget being expended and $47,182 in budget savings.  

Sanitation Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received % change

 prior year 

actual 

sanitation fees 669,090$       676,596$       101% -38% 1,087,441$    

other revenues 314,000         43,041           14% 27% 33,966           

total 983,090$       719,637$       73% -36% 1,121,407$    

Sanitation 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended
% change

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 96,900$         86,753$         90% -70% 284,992$       

purchased services 660,695         621,821         94% 156% 242,620         

supplies 1,800            3,639            202% -94% 62,104           

total 759,395$       712,213$       94% 21% 589,716$       



24 | P a g e  
 

Development Impact Fee Funds 

Development Impact Fee Funds account for the various development impact fees the Town 

collects to offset the impact (increased services/expenditures) of growth from new development. 

These fees are collected upon the issuance of a building permit for new residential units and new 

commercial construction.  

In order to establish development impact fees, the Town is required by state statute to complete 

land use assumptions and an infrastructure improvement plan upon which to base the impact fees 

for each service facility. 

Currently, the Town collects development impact fees for police, fire/ems, transportation, parks 

and open space, water and sewer. Development impact fees used to be collected for general 

government and sanitation until Jan. 1, 2012, when the state legislature passed a bill prohibiting 

the collection of such fees. 

The following tables summarize the collection, use and balances of these impact fees. 

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected -$           -$           146,798$    110,634$    199,778$    122,656$    

   Interest Earnings 2,000          10,543        100            3,932          2,000          5,604          

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             1,444,827   1,444,827   

   Total Sources 2,000          10,543        146,898      114,566      1,646,605   1,573,087   

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             127,300      127,300      3,019,244   3,018,792   

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             233            -             233            -             233            

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             149,078      149,078      -             -             

   Total Uses -             233            276,378      276,611      3,019,244   3,019,025   

Net Increase (Decrease) 2,000          10,310        (129,480)     (162,045)     (1,372,639)  (1,445,938)  

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2013 1,211,952   1,206,996   447,729      354,107      1,761,633   1,789,931   

Ending Balance - June 30, 2014 1,213,952$  1,217,306$  318,249$    192,062$    388,994$    343,993$    

 General Government  Police  Fire/EMS 



25 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected 268,403$    93,883$      227,960$    56,265$      20,806$      17,458$      

   Interest Earnings 1,000          5,949          2,000          10,680        1,000          6,902          

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 269,403      99,832        229,960      66,945        21,806        24,360        

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             1,181,677   -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             233            -             233            -             233            

   Professional Services - CIP-related 846,747      -             -             -             500,000      -             

   Transfers Out -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses 846,747      233            1,181,677   233            500,000      233            

Net Increase (Decrease) (577,344)     99,599        (951,717)     66,712        (478,194)     24,127        

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2013 644,119      667,966      1,198,948   1,212,950   794,246      791,178      

Ending Balance - June 30, 2014 66,775$      767,565$    247,231$    1,279,662$  316,052$    815,305$    

 Transportation  Parks/Open Space  Library 

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected 7,920$        -$           8,560$        -$           -$           -$           

   Interest Earnings -             928            1,000          3,129          -             490            

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 7,920          928            9,560          3,129          -             490            

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             43,675        -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             233            -             233            -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses -             233            -             233            43,675        -             

Net Increase (Decrease) 7,920          695            9,560          2,896          (43,675)       490            

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2013 1,194          110,203      340,935      356,012      43,675        45,317        

Ending Balance - June 30, 2014 9,114$        110,898$    350,495$    358,908$    -$           45,807$      

 Water  Sewer  Sanitation 



26 | P a g e  
 

 

Fund Summaries 

In addition to the discussion above regarding major funds, the following table summarizes all 

Town funds, as well as displaying the beginning and ending fund balances for the funds. 

  

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees

 budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected -$           -$           -$           -$           

   Interest Earnings 15              570            -             101            

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 15              570            -             101            

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             233            -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses -             233            -             -             

Net Increase (Decrease) 15              337            -             101            

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2013 10,074        9,513          7,415          12,173        

Ending Balance - June 30, 2014 10,089$      9,850$        7,415$        12,274$      

 North Florence Sewer  North Florence Water 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

General Fund

beginning fund balance 6,727,289$       11,253,437$     .

revenue 12,443,899       13,609,031       109% 14% 11,890,668$     

expenditures 13,309,014       16,365,081       123% 7% 15,236,913       

ending fund balance 5,862,174$       8,497,387$       .

Capital Improvements Fund

beginning fund balance 10,652,613$     10,700,473$     .

revenue 1,180,000        5,641,507        478% -12% 6,436,623        

expenditures 7,447,075        3,737,544        50% 69% 2,214,795        

ending fund balance 4,385,538$       12,604,436$     .

Highway User Revenue Fund

beginning fund balance 5,626,009$       6,542,993$       .

revenue 2,601,737        2,784,062        107% 9% 2,544,443        

expenditures 7,250,721        2,466,993        34% 16% 2,132,211        

ending fund balance 977,025$         6,860,062$       .



27 | P a g e  
 

 

  

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

Construction Tax Fund

beginning fund balance 3,496,181$       3,388,188$       .

revenue 190,000           171,765           90% 148% 69,150             

expenditures -                  -                  -100% 260,913           

ending fund balance 3,686,181$       3,559,953$       ,

Food Tax Fund

beginning fund balance 1,600,797$       1,590,293$       

revenue 230,000           259,577           113% 32% 196,298           

expenditures -                  -                  -                  

ending fund balance 1,830,797$       1,849,870$       .

Debt Service Fund

beginning fund balance 87,493$           237,973$         .

revenue 429,063           439,793           103% -8% 478,898           

expenditures 453,949           453,865           100% 1% 448,843           

ending fund balance 62,607$           223,901$         .

Economic Development Capital Projects Fund

beginning fund balance 444,856$         442,650$         .

revenue 5,000               6,773               135% -98% 442,650           

expenditures 444,856           2,173               0% -                  

ending fund balance 5,000$             447,250$         .

Water Utility Fund

beginning funds available 7,256,603$       9,832,339$       .

revenue 2,962,100        3,019,668        102% -1% 3,040,884        

expenditures 7,110,077        2,476,829        35% 39% 1,776,701        

ending funds available 3,108,626$       10,375,178$     .

Wastewater Utility Fund

beginning funds available 4,843,912$       8,198,537$       .

revenue 4,691,652        3,975,566        85% 12% 3,543,511        

expenditures 5,298,162        2,971,834        56% 45% 2,048,865        

ending funds available 4,237,402$       9,202,269$       .

Sanitation Utility Fund

beginning funds available 2,313,100$       1,715,757$       .

revenue 983,090           732,208           74% -34% 1,104,898        

expenditures 828,119           804,164           97% 7% 750,963           

ending funds available 2,468,071$       1,643,801$       .



28 | P a g e  
 

 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

Grant Funds

beginning fund balances 65,132$           88,846$           .

revenue 1,442,850        702,286           49%

expenditures 1,506,392        805,802           53%

ending fund balances 1,590$             (14,670)$          .

Other Special Revenue Funds

beginning fund balances 63,930$           118,349$         .

revenue 53,285             64,658             121% 26% 51,404             

expenditures 53,850             6,813               13% 20% 5,698               

ending fund balances 63,365$           176,194$         .

Streetlight Improvement District Funds

beginning fund balances 816,809$         825,104$         .

revenue 1,250               12,276             982% -432% (3,696)              

expenditures 69,500             90,797             131% 70% 53,546             

ending fund balances 748,559$         746,583$         .

Development Impact Fee Funds

beginning fund balances 6,461,920$       6,556,346$       .

revenue 2,334,167        1,933,659        83%

expenditures 5,867,721        3,297,267        56%

ending fund balances 2,928,366$       5,192,738$       .

Fleet Services Fund

beginning funds available -$                -$                .

revenue 671,228           666,499           99%

expenditures 671,228           666,499           99%

ending funds available -$                -$                .

Facility Services Fund

beginning funds available -$                -$                .

revenue 436,745           384,428           88%

expenditures 435,745           384,428           88%

ending funds available 1,000$             -$                .

Firefighter Pension Fund

beginning fund balance 314,835$         307,073$         .

revenue 30,000             39,172             131% 90% 20,658             

expenditures 10,500             23,022             219% 191% 7,919               

ending fund balance 334,335$         323,223$         .



29 | P a g e  
 

 

 General Fund expenditures exceeded the budget by 23% due to a transfer to the Capital 

Projects Fund of excess fund balance. 

 The total of Grants fund balances is currently a negative fund balance because revenue 

has yet to be received from the granting agencies. 

 Streetlight Improvement Districts’ expenditures exceeded the budget by $21,297 or 31% 

primarily because of transfers to the General Fund for prior year administrative costs 

made this year in the amount of $19,500. The remaining reason is that electricity costs 

exceeded estimates by $1,797. 

This report was prepared by the Town’s Finance Department. Please feel free to contact 

finance@florenceaz.gov with any questions. 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

All Town Funds

beginning fund balances 50,771,479$     61,798,358$     .

revenue 30,686,066       34,442,928       112% 16% 29,816,389       

expenditures 50,756,909       34,553,111       68% 39% 24,937,367       

ending fund balances 30,700,636$     61,688,175$     .

Community Facilities District #1

beginning fund balances 3,287,450$       2,934,675$       .

revenue 1,613,774        1,871,671        116% 64% 1,142,649        

expenditures 3,728,284        2,533,865        68% 94% 1,307,971        

ending fund balances 1,172,940$       2,272,481$       .

Community Facilities District #2

beginning fund balances 1,366,529$       1,551,268$       .

revenue 3,155,455        3,329,203        106% 325% 783,355           

expenditures 3,875,860        1,770,566        46% 96% 903,520           

ending fund balances 646,124$         3,109,905$       .

mailto:finance@florenceaz.gov


Town of Florence 

Quarterly Financial Report 

As of September 30, 2014 

(unaudited) 

 

Introduction 

The following report highlights the financial results of the Town through the first quarter of the 

fiscal year. The report presents the results of Town revenues, expenditures and fund balances and 

includes comparison of current year actual figures to the budget and prior year. This report is 

unaudited. 

Highlights 

 Sales tax is 9% lower than budget expectations and 8% less than the prior year due to lower 

revenue from private construction and several vendors who have not paid sales tax for 

several months. 

 State-shared sales tax is 2% lower than budget expectations and 4% ahead of the prior year. 

 State-shared income tax equals budget expectations and is 9% ahead of the prior year. 

 Vehicle license tax is 1% ahead of budget expectations and 6% ahead of the prior year. 

 Highway user revenue is 4% ahead of budget expectations and 10% ahead of the prior year. 

 Transportation excise tax is 8% lower than budget expectations and 2% less than the prior 

year. 

 Total Town revenues are slightly lower than expectations. Expenditures are within budget. 

 General Fund:  Excluding transfers, revenue is 3% greater than budget expectations and 

expenditures are within budget with 20% of the budget expended. 

 Capital Improvements Fund:  Sales tax from private construction is 17% lower than budget 

expectations. Expenditures are within budget. 

 HURF:  Highway user revenue is 4% ahead of budget expectations. Transportation excise tax 

is 8% lower than budget expectations. Expenditures are within budget. 

 Water Utility: 16% of the revenue budget is collected and expenditures are within budget. 

 Wastewater Utility:  16% of the revenue budget is collected and expenditures are within 

budget. 

 Sanitation:  23% of the revenue budget is collected and expenditures are within budget. 

 Fund balances are healthy and normal.



2 | P a g e  
 

Major Revenues 

Sales Tax 

The Town imposes a two percent (2%) transaction privilege tax rate 

on retail sales and services made within the Town boundaries. This 

tax is commonly referred to as sales tax. The total tax rate within the 

Town is 8.7 percent, which also includes the State and Pinal County 

tax rates. Sales tax revenue supports the Capital Improvements Fund 

(sales tax on private construction projects), Construction Tax Fund 

(sales tax on governmental entity construction projects), Food Tax 

Fund (sales tax on food for home consumption) and the General Fund (all other sales tax). 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected sales tax revenue is $4,458,700; including $2,636,600 from 

general retail, $1,509,000 from private construction, $55,200 from government 

construction and $257,900 from food. 

 The total collected is $918,377. This is $95,021 or 9% less than the projected amount and 

$82,878 or 8% lower than the prior year. 

 General retail and private construction sales tax revenue is lower than projections and 

prior year. Staff is researching a couple of major vendors that have not remitted sales tax 

for several months, which may have caused this lag in revenue. 

 

Town Sales 

Tax

monthly 

projections

 current 

year actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 312,462         291,872    -7% 3% 283,062       

Aug 362,930         318,984    -12% -13% 366,237       

Sep 338,005         307,521    -9% -13% 351,956       

YTD total 1,013,398      918,377    1,001,255    

YTD variance (95,021)     -9% -8% (82,878)        

Town Sales 

Tax by Type
General

 Private 

Construction 

Government 

Construction
 Food  Total 

Jul 157,202        89,689          12,380          32,601          291,872        

Aug 164,603        112,379        24,619          17,383          318,984        

Sep 173,051        111,141        6,748            16,581          307,521        

YTD total 494,856        313,209        43,747          66,565          918,377        

General 

Fund Town 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from projection

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 178,992        157,202        -12% -5% 165,685        

Aug 210,062        164,603        -22% -19% 202,270        

Sep 202,416        173,051        -15% -18% 211,097        

YTD total 591,471        494,856        579,052        

YTD variance (96,615)         -16% -15% (84,196)         

Sales Tax Rate 

in Florence 

Town 2.0% 

Pinal County 1.1% 

State of Arizona  5.6% 

Total 8.7% 



3 | P a g e  
 

General Fund State-shared Revenue 

As with all Arizona municipalities, the Town receives certain state revenues based on 

population. State-shared revenue includes sales tax, income tax and vehicle license tax.  

 

State-shared Sales Tax 

 

 The annual budget-projected state-shared sales tax revenue is $2,352,000. 

 The total collected is $545,719. This is $10,786 or 2% less than the projected amount and 

$20,138 or 4% greater than the prior year. 

 

State-shared Income Tax 

 

 The annual budget-projected state-shared income tax revenue is $3,091,100. 

 The total collected is $772,823, which is meeting projections and is $60,591 or 9% 

greater than the prior year. 

 

Vehicle License Tax 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected vehicle license tax revenue is $1,243,200. 

 The total collected is $312,787. This is $3,739 or 1% greater than the projected amount 

and $19,079 or 6% greater than the prior year. 

 

 

 

State-shared 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 190,360         185,459         -3% 4% 178,913         

Aug 180,179         177,331         -2% 3% 171,410         

Sep 185,966         182,929         -2% 4% 175,258         

YTD total 556,505         545,719         525,581         

YTD variance (10,786)          -2% 4% 20,138          

State-shared 

Income Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 257,592         257,608         0% 9% 237,411       

Aug 257,592         257,607         0% 9% 237,410       

Sep 257,592         257,608         0% 9% 237,411       

YTD total 772,776         772,823         712,232       

YTD variance 47                 0% 9% 60,591         

Vehicle 

License Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 103,648         109,022         5% 7% 101,813       

Aug 107,310         99,893           -7% -1% 100,820       

Sep 98,091           103,872         6% 14% 91,075         

YTD total 309,048         312,787         293,708       

YTD variance 3,739            1% 6% 19,079         



4 | P a g e  
 

Highway User Revenue 

Highway user revenue is state-shared and in addition to population, highway user revenue 

distribution is also based on gasoline sales. It consists of tax on gasoline, a portion of the vehicle 

license tax and other transportation related fees and must be used solely for street and highway 

purposes. This revenue is recorded in the Highway User Revenue Fund. 

 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected highway user revenue is $1,752,800. 

 The total collected is $415,535. This is $15,689 or 4% greater than the projected amount 

and $38,509 or 10% greater than the prior year. 

 

Transportation Excise Tax Revenue 

Transportation Excise Tax revenue is revenue that was approved by the voters of Pinal County to 

be used solely for highway and street purposes. The Town receives a share of the revenue from 

the County based on population. 

 

 
 

 The annual budget-projected transportation excise tax revenue is $1,053,700. 

 The total collected is $236,770.  This is $21,144 or 8% less than the projected amount 

and $5,102 or 2% lower than the prior year. 

 

 

 

 

  

Highway User 

Revenue

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 134,522         142,347         6% 10% 129,734       

Aug 130,882         136,018         4% 12% 120,910       

Sep 134,442         137,170         2% 9% 126,382       

YTD total 399,846         415,535         377,026       

YTD variance 15,689           4% 10% 38,509         

Transportation 

Excise Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 86,355           78,819           -9% -2% 80,140           

Aug 87,979           77,720           -12% -4% 81,312           

Sep 83,580           80,231           -4% 0% 80,420           

YTD total 257,914         236,770         241,872         

YTD variance (21,144)          -8% -2% (5,102)            



5 | P a g e  
 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the Town’s main operating fund accounting for most of the Town’s 

services, including fire and police public safety, culture and recreation, community development 

and general government administration. The General Fund is primarily supported by local and 

state-shared taxes. 

General Fund Revenue 

The majority of Town revenue is projected to come from state-shared revenue (48%) and local 

sales tax (19%). The remainder comes from property tax (6%), building permit fees (3%), 

franchise fees (4%), charges for services (5%), fines and forfeitures (1%) and other sources 

(2%). 

 

 

  

19% 

12% 

6% 

3% 

4% 

48% 

5% 1% 

2% 

General Fund funding sources 

sales tax

transfers in

property tax

building permit

franchise fees

intergovernmental

charges for services

fines and forfeitures

other revenue



6 | P a g e  
 

Major revenues supporting the General Fund are discussed above in the Major Revenue section 

of this report. 

 

 The annual budget-projected General Fund revenue, excluding transfers, is $12,332,800. 

 The total collected is $2,864,929. This is $91,875 or 3% greater than the projected 

amount and $277,439 or 11% greater than the prior year. 

 

 

General Fund 

Revenue

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 815,967         1,067,800      31% 40% 763,649         

Aug 910,617         800,055         -12% -3% 824,631         

Sep 1,046,469      997,074         -5% 0% 999,210         

YTD total 2,773,054      2,864,929      2,587,490      

YTD variance 91,875           3% 11% 277,439         

General Fund Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received

 prior year 

actual 

% change 

from prior year
 $ diff 

taxes

sales tax 2,636,600$    494,856$       19% 579,052$       -15% (84,196)$       

property tax 863,000        57,854          7% 28,487          103% 29,367          

   total taxes 3,499,600      552,710        16% 607,539        -9% (54,829)         

licenses and permits

building permit fee 491,300        116,546        24% 97,906          19% 18,640          

other licenses/permits 46,800          4,915            11% 2,030            142% 2,885            

   total licenses/permits 538,100        121,461        23% 99,936          22% 21,525          

franchise fees

APS franchise fee 288,800        97,017          34% 97,291          0% (274)              

other franchise fees 274,800        42,962          16% 9,077            373% 33,885          

   total franchise fees 563,600        139,979        25% 106,368        32% 33,611          

intergovernmental

state-shared sales tax 2,352,000      545,719        23% 525,581        4% 20,138          

state-shared income tax 3,091,100      772,823        25% 712,232        9% 60,591          

vehicle license tax 1,243,200      312,787        25% 293,708        6% 19,079          

   total intergovernmental 6,686,300      1,631,329      24% 1,531,521      7% 99,808          

charges for services 671,200        145,215        22% 170,924        -15% (25,709)         

fines and forfeitures 190,200        39,426          21% 40,800          -3% (1,374)           

other revenues 183,800        234,809        128% 30,402          672% 204,407        

transfers in 1,711,200      -               0% 358,551        -100% (358,551)       

total 14,044,000$  2,864,929$    20% 2,946,041$    -3% (81,112)$       



7 | P a g e  
 

General Fund Expenditures 

The General Fund accounts 

for the majority of the Town’s 

services including, public 

safety – police and fire/EMS 

services; culture and 

recreation – parks 

maintenance, recreation 

programs, fitness center, 

aquatics, special events, 

senior center and library 

services; community 

development; and general 

government – elected 

officials, administration, town 

attorney, courts, finance, 

information technology and 

human resources. 

By function, expenditures for 

public safety make up nearly 

half of the total budget in the 

General Fund at 49%; 29% is 

for general government; 15% 

is for culture and recreation; 

6% is for community 

development, which includes 

planning, zoning and building 

inspection; and, 1% for 

economic development. 

By type, expenditures for 

salary and benefits make up 

80% of the total General Fund budget. The rest of the General Fund consists of purchased 

services (non-employee services) – 11%; supplies – 4%; and other (dues, memberships, training) 

– 5%. 

The following table compares current year-to-date actuals to the budget and prior year amounts 

by department.  



8 | P a g e  
 

 

 The General Fund budget, excluding transfers, is $13,715,200.  

 The total spent is $2,733,310 or 20% of the budgeted amount. This is 2% greater than the 

prior year. 

 Departments are within budget expectations with 25% of the year completed. 

 The following tables summarize the General Fund expenditures by function and type. 

 

  

  

General Fund 

Expenditures by 

Department

budget
 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

town council 158,200$       43,139$         27% -19% 53,481$         

administration 709,800         143,363         20% -24% 188,024         

courts 292,200         56,998           20% 32% 43,318           

legal services 269,500         59,992           22% 24% 48,559           

finance 935,000         198,089         21% 3% 192,769         

human resources 253,800         49,131           19% 17% 41,985           

community development 668,800         105,457         16% -21% 133,180         

police 3,952,800      778,817         20% 4% 750,649         

fire/EMS 2,809,200      652,623         23% 9% 601,242         

information technology 615,000         134,988         22% -4% 141,085         

parks and recreation 1,602,300      320,964         20% 19% 268,992         

library 380,600         93,210           24% 16% 80,258           

engineering 192,700         22,858           12% 7% 21,304           

general government 683,600         51,071           7% -42% 88,158           

cemetery 9,000            2,543            28% -8% 2,773            

economic development 182,700         20,067           11% -31% 29,056           

total 13,715,200$   2,733,310$    20% 2% 2,684,833$    

General Fund 

Expenditures by Function
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

general government 3,926,100$    739,314$       19% -8% 800,152$       

public safety 6,762,000      1,431,440      21% 6% 1,351,891      

community development 861,500         128,315         15% -17% 154,484         

culture and recreation 1,982,900      414,174         21% 19% 349,250         

economic development 182,700         20,067           11% -31% 29,056           

total 13,715,200$   2,733,310$    20% 2% 2,684,833$    

General Fund 

Expenditures by Type
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

salaries and benefits 10,919,400$   2,363,147$    22% 9% 2,169,186$    

purchased services 1,521,800      188,427         12% -31% 272,273         

supplies 612,300         104,746         17% -14% 121,684         

other 661,700         76,990           12% -37% 121,690         

total 13,715,200$   2,733,310$    20% 2% 2,684,833$    



9 | P a g e  
 

Highway User Revenue Fund 

The Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) accounts for operation, maintenance and capital 

expenditures of Town streets and highways (public works). HURF is primarily supported by 

state-shared highway user revenue and transportation excise tax received from Pinal County. 

These revenues must be used on street and highway expenditures. 

Revenue 

 

 $662,809 or 23% of the $2,853,400 revenue budget is collected. This is 5% greater than 

the prior year. 

 Highway user revenue and transportation excise tax are explained and discussed in more 

detail in the major revenue section earlier in this report. 

Expenditures 

 

 $299,921 or 4% of the $8,256,500 budget is expended. 

 Capital outlay expenditures, the largest component, have yet to get started. Excluding 

capital outlay, 20% of the budget is expended. 

HURF Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

highway user revenue 1,752,800$ 415,535$             24% 10% 377,026$       

transportation excise tax 1,053,700   236,770               22% -2% 241,872        

other revenues 37,000       10,504                 28% -30% 14,922          

transfers in 9,900         -                      0% -               

total 2,853,400$ 662,809$             23% 5% 633,820$       

HURF 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 
% expended

% change 

from prior year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 1,178,700$    269,983$       23% 5% 256,721$       

purchased services 263,300        23,871          9% -47% 44,778          

supplies 84,000          5,428            6% -83% 32,351          

capital outlay 6,725,700      307               0% -100% 115,271        

other 4,800            332               7% 249% 95                

total 8,256,500$    299,921$       4% -33% 449,216$       



10 | P a g e  
 

 

  

HURF Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

equipment:

   backhoe attachments 25,000$        -$             0%

streets and highways:

   Florence Gardens street improvements 40,000         -               0%

   SH79B/SH287 intersection improvements 603,600        -               0%

   Diversion Dam road improvements 2,091,300     307              0%

   streets signalization 402,900        -               0%

   Felix Road 1/2 road improvements 225,000        -               0%

   Pinal Street drainage improvements (Butte to First) 650,000        -               0%

   Hunt Highway overlay 44,600         -               0%

   East Butte microseal 175,000        -               0%

   Hunt Highway intersection improvement 355,000        -               0%

   Florence Heights improvements (Main to SR79) 1,900,000     -               0%

   stormwater masterplan 125,000        -               0%

   stormwater improvements 45,000         -               0%

total 6,682,400$   307$            0%



11 | P a g e  
 

Capital Improvement Fund 

The Capital Improvement Fund (CIP) accounts for many of the Town capital projects including 

buildings and building improvements, park improvements, land acquisitions and equipment. The 

Capital Improvement Fund is primarily supported by construction-related sales tax. 

Revenue 

 

 $322,405 or 21% of the $1,509,000 revenue budget is collected. This is 13% less than the 

prior year. 

 

 The major revenue of this fund, private construction tax, is $64,041 or 17% less than 

projected and $52,683 or 38% greater than the prior year. 

 

Expenditures 

 

 

 

Capital Projects Fund 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

private construction tax 1,509,000$     313,209$       21% -14% 365,892$       

other revenues 50,000           9,196             18% 105% 4,483             

total 1,559,000$     322,405$       21% -13% 370,375$       

Private 

Construction 

Sales Tax

monthly 

projections

 current year 

actual 

% variance 

from 

projection

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

Jul 125,750         89,689           -29% -9% 99,011         

Aug 125,750         112,379         -11% -21% 141,373       

Sep 125,750         111,141         -12% -11% 125,508       

YTD total 377,250         313,209         365,892       

YTD variance (64,041)          -17% -14% (52,683)        

Capital Projects Fund Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

Police

  security camera system upgrade, AV 21,000         14,524         69%

  substation FFE 1,000          -              0%

  compstat dashboard software 30,600         -              0%

Fire/EMS

  G2 alerting system 45,000         -              0%

  SCBAs 29,100         -              0%

  voice amplifiers and mics 35,000         -              0%

  fire station #2 FFE 8,200          -              0%



12 | P a g e  
 

 

Capital Projects Fund Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

Parks and Recreation

  softball field #3 lighting 150,000       1,500          1%

  various park improvements 6,100          2,483          41%

  scoreboards 34,600         -              0%

  mower/ATV/bunker rake 4,100          -              0%

Public Works

  Main Street extension 700,000       3,453          0%

  roadway repair and maintenance 500,000       17,845         4%

  curb/sidewalk new and replace 250,000       8,523          3%

  Main Street overlay 200,000       -              0%

  tractor 30,000         -              0%

  neighborhood lighting 500,000       -              0%

General Government

  cost of issuance 100,000       -              0%

  public art 100,000       -              0%

  wireless interconnection redundancy upgrade 107,200       640             1%

  modular workstations in finance area 20,000         -              0%

  annexation set aside 500,000       -              0%

Facilities

  fiber connection to new CD/Utility building 15,000         -              0%

  Territory Square CLOMR/LOMR 721,700       682,484       95%

  cashier window expansion in Finance dept. 18,000         -              0%

  library/aquatics/recreation complex 13,280,000  298,977       2%

  acquire building for CD/Utility depts 335,000       334,866       100%

  tenant improvements for new CD/Utility building 60,000         -              0%

  admin counter security modifications 10,000         -              0%

  various minor capital outlay 100,000       -              0%

  Fire Station #1 office/dorm windows 50,000         -              0%

  Silver King electrical rewiring 100,000       -              0%

  land acquisition 201,500       21,779         11%

  police station outside improvements and repairs 88,000         -              0%

  police station parking lot 120,000       -              0%

  police station building improvements 9,700          3,557          37%

  fire station #1 bay floor patching 6,000          -              0%

  Padilla Park 500,000       362,252       72%

  Senior Center HVAC and restrooms 27,200         2,053          8%

  Town Hall facility maintenance 100,000       -              0%

  fire station #1, fitness center, SK recoat roof foaming 33,700         -              0%

  Town Hall HVAC rebalancing 10,100         -              0%

  Brunenkant building business center 75,000         2,186          3%

  



13 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

  

Capital Projects Fund Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

  

Fleet

  fleet replacement 242,000       -              0%

  2 new police vehicles 98,000         65,592         67%

  PW water truck 125,000       -              0%

  fleet pool vehicle 35,000         -              0%

  fueling facility 200,000       -              0%

  floor jacks, battery charges, lift jack 13,800         4,549          33%

  A/C recovery, recycling, recharge 7,800          -              0%

  diagnostic system 19,600         8,478          43%

  transmission fluid system 19,000         -              0%

  coolant recovery system 3,100          -              0%

total 19,996,100$ 1,835,741$  9%



14 | P a g e  
 

Water Utility Fund 

The Water Utility Fund accounts for water utility operations, maintenance and capital projects 

and is primarily supported by water utility usage fees. 

Revenue 

 

 $519,754 or 16% of the $3,185,400 revenue budget is collected. This is 5% less than the 

prior year. 

 

Expenditures 

 

 $552,575 or 6% of the $9,894,800 budget is expended. 

 4% of the capital outlay expenditures, the largest component, are expended. Excluding 

capital outlay, 12% of the budget is expended. 

 

 

Water Utility 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

water utility fees 3,165,400$     511,276$        16% -5% 540,556$        

other revenues 20,000            8,478             42% 72% 4,922             

total 3,185,400$     519,754$        16% -5% 545,478$        

Water Utility 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 
% expended

% change from 

prior year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 408,300$        85,781$          21% -4% 89,721$          

purchased services 543,200          69,954            13% 21% 57,697            

supplies 134,100          18,548            14% -13% 21,290            

capital outlay 8,350,400       372,706          4% -                 

other 458,800          5,586             1% -29% 7,852             

total 9,894,800$     552,575$        6% 213% 176,560$        

Water Utility Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

new well in North Florence 784,600$       -$              0%

relocation of water line at INS Admin Building 110,000        -               0%

water storage tank at Florence Gardens 2,519,500      21,524          1%

fire hydrant replacements 38,300          193               1%

replace well #3 1,692,200      283,493        17%

water valve replacements 31,500          -               0%

water line replacement on Main Street 92,000          -               0%

4" and under water line replacements in various locations 198,100        18,037          9%

fire hydrant system replacement in downtown 35,000          -               0%

SCADA tie-ins 85,000          -               0%

booster pumps at well #5 150,000        -               0%

Adamsville water lines 838,000        -               0%

water transmission line extension 603,300        31,251          5%

Bailey Street water line extension 736,900        4,997            1%

water line extension 200,000        13,211          7%

VFDs on booster pumps 40,000          -               0%

office space renovation 57,500          -               0%

total 8,211,900$    372,706$       5%



15 | P a g e  
 

Wastewater Utility Fund 

The Wastewater Utility Fund accounts for wastewater (sewer) utility operations, maintenance 

and capital projects and is primarily supported by wastewater utility usage fees. 

 

Revenue 

 

 $705,673 or 12% of the $5,649,400 revenue budget is collected. Excluding budgeted loan 

proceeds, this is 16% of the revenue budget and 4% lower than the prior year. 

 

Expenditures 

 

 $945,422 or 17% of the $5,675,600 budget is expended. 

 1% of the capital outlay expenditures, the largest component, are expended. Excluding 

capital outlay and debt service, 26% of the budget is expended. 

 

 

 

  

Wastewater Utility 

Revenue
budget

 current year 

actual 
% received

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

wastewater fees 4,314,400$    698,907$       16% -4% 730,815$       

loan proceeds 1,300,000      -                0% 0% -                

other revenues 35,000           6,766            19% 82% 3,722            

total 5,649,400$    705,673$       12% -4% 734,537$       

Wastewater Utility 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 587,800$       127,621$       22% 13% 113,172$       

purchased services 1,092,200      326,382         30% 147% 131,918         

supplies 178,200         23,524           13% 10% 21,399           

capital outlay 3,177,600      18,881           1% 0% -                

other 19,400           8,531            44% 29% 6,637            

debt service 620,400         440,483         71% 0% 442,124         

total 5,675,600$    945,422$       17% 32% 715,250$       

Wastewater Utility Capital Outlay Expenditures budget
 current year 

actual 
% expended

2.5 mechanical sewer plant 1,288,500      16,299           1%

recharge 40,000           -                0%

polishing lagoons and berm reconstruction at WWTP 214,000         -                0%

office lab space at WWTP 280,700         170               0%

office space renovation at WWTP 57,500           -                0%

expand effluent discharge system 1,264,100      2,412             0%

total 3,144,800$     18,881$         1%



16 | P a g e  
 

Sanitation Utility Fund 

The Sanitation Utility Fund accounts for sanitation utility operations, maintenance and capital 

projects and is primarily supported by sanitation utility usage fees. 

 

Sanitation Utility Fund Revenue 

 

 $154,333 or 23% of the $682,000 revenue budget is collected and is 2% lower than the 

prior year. 

 

Sanitation Utility Fund Expenditures 

 

 $161,288 or 19% of the $846,500 budget is expended. 

 

  

Sanitation Revenue budget
 current year 

actual 
% received % change

 prior year 

actual 

sanitation fees 672,000$       152,860$       23% -3% 156,885$       

other revenues 10,000           1,473            15% 65% 892               

total 682,000$       154,333$       23% -2% 157,777$       

Sanitation 

Expenditures
budget

 current year 

actual 

% 

expended
% change

 prior year 

actual 

personal services 77,000$         20,664$         27% -33% 30,682$         

purchased services 767,400         140,298         18% 18% 119,300         

supplies 2,100            326               16% -88% 2,661            

total 846,500$       161,288$       19% 6% 152,643$       



17 | P a g e  
 

Development Impact Fee Funds 

Development Impact Fee Funds account for the various development impact fees the Town 

collects to offset the impact (increased services/expenditures) of growth from new development. 

These fees are collected upon the issuance of a building permit for new residential units and new 

commercial construction.  

In order to establish development impact fees, the Town is required by state statute to complete 

land use assumptions and an infrastructure improvement plan upon which to base the impact fees 

for each service facility. 

Currently, the Town collects development impact fees for police, fire/ems, transportation, parks 

and open space, water and sewer. Development impact fees used to be collected for general 

government and sanitation until Jan. 1, 2012, when the state legislature passed a bill prohibiting 

the collection of such fees. 

The following tables summarize the collection, use and balances of these impact fees. 

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected -$           -$           91,100$      28,375$      91,100$      29,377$      

   Interest Earnings 6,400          950            1,800          135            4,000          301            

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 6,400          950            92,900        28,510        95,100        29,678        

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out 1,219,700   -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses 1,219,700   -             -             -             -             -             

Net Increase (Decrease) (1,213,300)  950            92,900        28,510        95,100        29,678        

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2014 1,213,400   1,217,306   188,600      192,062      340,700      343,993      

Ending Balance - June 30, 2015 100$           1,218,256$  281,500$    220,572$    435,800$    373,671$    

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees
 General Government  Police  Fire/EMS 



18 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected 96,200$      38,109$      5,700$        1,662$        30,500$      8,670$        

   Interest Earnings -             625            6,700          1,000          4,200          642            

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 96,200        38,734        12,400        2,662          34,700        9,312          

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             1,289,700   -             846,700      -             

   Total Uses -             -             1,289,700   -             846,700      -             

Net Increase (Decrease) 96,200        38,734        (1,277,300)  2,662          (812,000)     9,312          

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2014 -             767,565      1,277,400   1,279,662   812,100      815,305      

Ending Balance - June 30, 2015 96,200$      806,299$    100$           1,282,324$  100$           824,617$    

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees
 Transportation  Parks/Open Space  Library 

 budget  actual  budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected -$           1,665$        -$           2,053$        -$           -$           

   Interest Earnings 400            87              1,500          281            -             36              

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 400            1,752          1,500          2,334          -             36              

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses -             -             -             -             -             -             

Net Increase (Decrease) 400            1,752          1,500          2,334          -             36              

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2014 110,600      110,799      357,500      358,589      1,900          45,766        

Ending Balance - June 30, 2015 111,000$    112,551$    359,000$    360,923$    1,900$        45,802$      

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees
 Water  Sewer  Sanitation 



19 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Fund Summaries 

In addition to the discussion above regarding major funds, the following table summarizes all 

Town funds, as well as displaying the beginning and ending fund balances for the funds. 

  

 budget  actual  budget  actual 

Sources
   Development Fees Collected -$           -$           -$           -$           

   Interest Earnings 500            8                100            10              

   Loan Proceeds -             -             -             -             

   Transfers In -             -             -             -             

   Total Sources 500            8                100            10              

Uses
   Capital Improvement Projects - DIF funded -             -             -             -             

   Debt Service -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - DIF Revisions -             -             -             -             

   Professional Services - CIP-related -             -             -             -             

   Transfers Out -             -             -             -             

   Total Uses -             -             -             -             

Net Increase (Decrease) 500            8                100            10              

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2014 10,000        9,841          12,300        12,263        

Ending Balance - June 30, 2015 10,500$      9,849$        12,400$      12,273$      

Summary of Collection and Use of 

Development Impact Fees
 North Florence Sewer  North Florence Water 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year    

actual 

General Fund

beginning fund balance 7,654,700$       8,497,387$       .

revenue 14,044,000       2,864,929        20% -3% 2,946,041$       

expenditures 14,513,600       2,733,310        19% 2% 2,686,208        

ending fund balance 7,185,100$       8,629,006$       .

Capital Improvements Fund

beginning fund balance 13,152,100$     12,604,436$     .

revenue 13,015,100       322,405           2% -13% 370,375           

expenditures 23,177,600       1,853,992        8% 1227% 139,668           

ending fund balance 2,989,600$       11,072,849$     .

Highway User Revenue Fund

beginning fund balance 6,366,700$       6,860,062$       .

revenue 2,853,400        662,809           23% 5% 633,820           

expenditures 8,876,300        299,921           3% -47% 570,785           

ending fund balance 343,800$         7,222,950$       .



20 | P a g e  
 

 

  

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year    

actual 

Construction Tax Fund

beginning fund balance 3,460,300$       3,559,953$       .

revenue 73,200             46,509             64% 425% 8,865               

expenditures 1,000,000        -                  0% -                  

ending fund balance 2,533,500$       3,606,462$       ,

Food Tax Fund

beginning fund balance 1,845,900$       1,849,870$       

revenue 267,900           68,019             25% 34% 50,659             

expenditures 2,100,000        -                  0% -                  

ending fund balance 13,800$           1,917,889$       .

Debt Service Fund

beginning fund balance 213,100$         223,901$         .

revenue 519,200           -                  0% -                  

expenditures 543,800           69,748             13% 0% 69,748             

ending fund balance 188,500$         154,153$         .

Economic Development Capital Projects Fund

beginning fund balance 442,900$         447,250$         .

revenue 2,400               346                 14% 69% 205                 

expenditures 442,700           -                  0% -                  

ending fund balance 2,600$             447,596$         .

Water Utility Fund

beginning funds available 10,234,600$     10,375,178$     .

revenue 3,185,400        519,754           16% -5% 545,478           

expenditures 10,449,300       552,575           5% 81% 304,486           

ending funds available 2,970,700$       10,342,357$     .

Wastewater Utility Fund

beginning funds available 8,688,700$       9,202,269$       .

revenue 4,349,400        705,673           16% -4% 734,537           

expenditures 6,350,900        945,422           15% 16% 811,544           

ending funds available 6,687,200$       8,962,520$       .

Sanitation Utility Fund

beginning funds available 1,887,000$       1,643,801$       .

revenue 682,000           154,333           23% -2% 157,777           

expenditures 916,800           161,288           18% -2% 165,405           

ending funds available 1,652,200$       1,636,846$       .



21 | P a g e  
 

 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year    

actual 

Grant Funds

beginning fund balances -$                (14,670)$          .

revenue 3,538,600        -                  0%

expenditures 3,538,600        51,048             1%

ending fund balances -$                (65,718)$          .

Other Special Revenue Funds

beginning fund balances 122,900$         176,194$         .

revenue 60,700             2,140               4% 1% 2,117               

expenditures 104,300           2,085               2% 11% 1,875               

ending fund balances 79,300$           176,249$         .

Streetlight Improvement District Funds

beginning fund balances 758,800$         746,583$         .

revenue 4,400               570                 13% 48% 385                 

expenditures 73,100             8,411               12% 10% 7,674               

ending fund balances 690,100$         738,742$         .

Development Impact Fee Funds

beginning fund balances 4,324,500$       5,192,738$       .

revenue 340,200           113,986           34%

expenditures 3,356,100        -                  0%

ending fund balances 1,308,600$       5,306,724$       .

Fleet Services Fund

beginning funds available -$                -$                .

revenue 803,700           -                  0%

expenditures 803,700           128,858           16%

ending funds available -$                (128,858)$        .

Facility Services Fund

beginning funds available 1,100$             -$                .

revenue 449,000           -                  0%

expenditures 448,000           100,171           22%

ending funds available 2,100$             (100,171)$        .

Firefighter Pension Fund

beginning fund balance 322,600$         323,223$         .

revenue 30,000             2,558               9% -71% 8,906               

expenditures 14,500             7,786               54% 33% 5,850               

ending fund balance 338,100$         317,995$         .



22 | P a g e  
 

 

 Revenues appear to be near normal. Expenditures are within budget and healthy ending 

fund balances remain. 

This report was prepared by the Town’s Finance Department. Please feel free to contact 

finance@florenceaz.gov with any questions. 

budget
 current year 

actual 

% received/ 

expended

% change 

from prior 

year

 prior year    

actual 

All Town Funds

beginning fund balances 59,475,900$     61,688,175$     .

revenue 44,218,600       5,464,031        12% 0% 5,459,165        

expenditures 76,709,300       6,914,615        9% 45% 4,763,243        

ending fund balances 26,985,200$     60,237,591$     .

Community Facilities District #1

beginning fund balances 2,311,700$       2,272,481$       .

revenue 3,852,800        34,803             1% -98% 1,678,132        

expenditures 4,873,300        854,545           18% -39% 1,393,647        

ending fund balances 1,291,200$       1,452,739$       .

Community Facilities District #2

beginning fund balances 1,254,700$       3,109,905$       .

revenue 1,438,400        32,251             2% -94% 527,768           

expenditures 1,752,000        831,186           47% -10% 926,706           

ending fund balances 941,100$         2,310,970$       .

mailto:finance@florenceaz.gov


 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration, Finance, Legal 
 
SUBJECT:   Second Public Hearing on Resolution No. 1486-

14: State-Imposed Expenditure Limitation; and 
Special Election in May 2015. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Hold a public hearing on Resolution No. 1486-14:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1486-14 State Imposed Expenditure Limitation and Special Election 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PROPOSING A ONE-TIME SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE STATE-
IMPOSED EXPENDITURE LIMITATION AND SETTING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR 
MAY 19, 2015.  
 
State Imposed Expenditure Limitation: 
 
With the failure of the Home Rule Option election in August 2014, the Town is now 
subject to the state-imposed expenditure limitation, which will significantly reduce the 
Town’s budget for the next two fiscal years.  
 
At the October 6, 2014 work session, staff presented the impact that the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation will have on the Town’s annual budget and recommended 
preparing for a May election asking voters to authorize a specific amount in excess of 
the state-imposed expenditure limitation. A recommended election calendar and 
resolution have been drafted and the specific amount to be requested has been 
determined. Staff recommends asking the Florence voters for authorization to exceed 
the state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by $15,000,000, to 
allow the Town to adopt a budget no greater than the amount that was adopted for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
This will allow the Town to determine and develop its own budget that will maintain the 
current level of services, proceed with planned necessary capital projects as outlined in 
our Capital Improvement Plan and account for any inflationary cost increases. 
 
The Arizona State Constitution gives the voters of Florence the ability to regain local 
control over the development of the budget rather than being restricted by the state. 
Should voters authorize a specific amount in excess of the state-imposed expenditure 
limitation, they would be providing the ability to develop a budget that will maintain the 
current level of services that the citizens of Florence have come to expect in areas that 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1486-14 State Imposed Expenditure Limitation and Special Election 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 

include police, fire, economic and community development, parks and recreation, and 
water, wastewater and sanitation services. 
 
If an election is not held or if voters do not pass the election, the Town will still receive 
but will be unable to spend over $24 million in revenue, all of which is meant to provide 
the services listed above to our citizens.  
 
Passing the election WILL NOT increase taxes. Likewise, if the election does not pass, 
taxes WILL NOT decrease. 
 
The table below illustrates the estimated budget reduction that will be necessary to 
comply with the state-imposed expenditure limitation. 
 

State-Imposed Expenditure Limitation Budget 
Fiscal Year Estimated Reduction 

2015-16 $12,834,700 
2016-17 $11,402,800 

 
SPECIAL ELECTION: 
 
The Town may exceed its expenditure limitation by holding an election the third 
Tuesday, in May 2015, and again in May 2016.  In order to have this election, two-thirds 
of the members of the Council must vote in favor of holding an election.  At the election 
a majority of qualified electors voting must give their vote of approval for the excess. 
 
Before Council can call an election, they must hold two public hearings. Attached are 
the resolution and ballot language that will be used for the public hearings.  Public 
hearings are scheduled for December 1 and December 15, 2014.  Immediately following 
the second public hearing, the Council must convene in special meeting and vote on the 
proposed excess expenditure. If approved, a record of the vote and the purposes of the 
excess expenditure must be published in the newspaper.  Afterwards, Council will call 
the Special Election. The call of the Special Election is planned for January 5, 2015.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Hold the second public hearing and adopt Resolution No. 1486-14. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1486-14 
Ballot Language 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1486-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PROPOSING A ONE-TIME 
SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE STATE-IMPOSED 
EXPENDITURE LIMITATION AND SETTING A SPECIAL ELECTION 
FOR MAY 19, 2015.  

 
WHEREAS, the Arizona State Constitution permits the submission of the voters 

of a city or town of a one-time specific amount in excess of the Town’s expenditure 
limitation under Article IX, Section 20(2)(c); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Florence voters in 1982, 1986, 1990, 1994, 1998, 2002, 2006 
and 2010 have authorized the local alternative expenditure limitation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town’s current local alternative expenditure limitation (Home 
Rule Option) expires at the end of Fiscal Year 2014-2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town’s voters did not approve the alternative expenditure 

limitation (Home Rule Option) presented for Fiscal Years 2015-2016 through 2018-
2019; therefore, a ballot measure requesting authorization to exceed the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation must be presented to the voters for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Florence Town Council, after two public hearings, has 
determined that a one-time specific amount in excess of the state-imposed expenditure 
limitation is necessary for the Town of Florence to regain local control. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Florence Town Council: 
 

SECTION 1.   That the Town Clerk is authorized to enter into an agreement with 
the Pinal County Election Department for the administration of the 
election. 

 
SECTION 2.   That the following question will be submitted to the qualified 

Florence voters at a Special Election to be held May 19, 2015: 
 

Shall the Town of Florence regain local control and exceed the 
state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by 
$15,000,000, to allow the Town to adopt a budget no greater than 
the amount that was adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-2015? 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Florence Town Council: 
 
 “The Florence Town Council shall, as part of the 2015-2016 Budget, adopt an 
expenditure limitation to govern the Town of Florence budget for the Fiscal Year 
immediately following such adoption.  The expenditure limitation shall be adopted after 



a Public Hearing at which the citizens may comment on the proposed expenditure 
limitation.  No expenditure may be made in violation of such Budget, nor may any 
processed expenditures be in excess of estimated available revenues except that the 
Town Council may, by three-fourths vote, declare an emergency and suspend the effect 
for one Fiscal Year at a time.” 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Florence Town Council, this 15th day of 
December, 2014. 

 
      _______________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Town Attorney 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
  
  
CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 1486-14 was duly 
passed and adopted by the Town Council of Florence, Arizona, at a Special Meeting 
held on the 15th day of December, 2014, and that the vote was _____ ayes and 
______nays. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  



One-time Specific Amount in Excess of State-Imposed Expenditure Limitation 
 

Summary Analysis 
 

The voters of the Town of Florence have adopted a local alternative expenditure 
limitation (Home Rule Option) in every election that it has been presented to them: 
1982, 1986, 1990, 1994, 1998, 2002, 2006 and 2010. 
 
Due to a defeat of the Home Rule Option in the 2014 Primary Election, the Town needs 
to hold a special election to seek a one-time specific amount in excess of the state-
imposed expenditure limit for Fiscal Year 2015-2016, until a Home Rule Option can be 
submitted to the voters as part of the Town’s Primary Election in August of 2016. 
 
The approval of a one-time specific amount in excess of the state-imposed expenditure 
limit will not increase taxes. It merely permits the Town to regain local control and 
spend the existing revenues it already collects.  
 
If approved by the voters, the Town of Florence will regain local control and can exceed 
the state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by $15,000,000, 
which will allow the Town to adopt a budget no greater than the amount that was 
adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. The existing revenues are funds collected by the 
Town from state and local sources that are used to maintain the current levels of service 
that the citizens of Florence have come to expect.  The services include police, fire, 
courts, economic and community development, parks and recreation, street 
maintenance and improvements, water and wastewater systems operations and 
maintenance, refuse and recycling services, senior services, as well as other important 
public services provided by the Town of Florence. 
 
If the specific amount in excess of the state expenditure limitation is not approved by the 
voters, the Town will not be able to maintain its current levels of service under the state-
imposed expenditure limit and additional service cuts will be required. 
  



TEXT OF BALLOT 
 

PROPOSITION XXXX 
 
Referred to the voters of the Town of Florence by the Florence Town Council 
 
Official title: Resolution No. 1486-14 – A resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, proposing a one-time specific amount in excess of the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation of Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Descriptive title:   
This measure, under Article IX, Section 20(2)(c), of the Arizona Constitution, allows the 
Town of Florence to exceed the state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 by $15,000,000 to allow the Town to adopt a budget no greater than the 
amount that was adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 

A “YES” vote shall have the effect of continuing existing services by regaining 
local control of the expenditure of existing revenues by Florence residents. 

 
A “NO” vote shall have the effect of preventing the local control of expenditures 
by Florence residents and will require expenditures instead to be limited by the 
state-imposed expenditure formula based on Fiscal Year 1979-80 expenditures, 
resulting in cuts in existing Town services and programs. 

 
Proposition XXXX: 
 
Shall the Town of Florence regain local control and exceed the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by $15,000,000, to allow the Town to 
adopt a budget no greater than the amount that was adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015? 
  



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

The Town Council of the Town of Florence will hold two public hearings on Resolution 
No. 1486-14:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, PROPOSING A ONE-
TIME SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE STATE-IMPOSED EXPENDITURE 
LIMITATION AND SETTING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR MAY 19, 2015 

Public Hearing will be held on: 

December 1, 2014, 6:00 p.m.  December 15, 2014 6:00 p.m. 

Florence Town Hall    Florence Town Hall 

775. N. Main Street    775 N. Main Street 

Florence, Arizona 85132   Florence, Arizona 85132 

Publish in the Florence Reminder on 11/20, 11/27, 12/4, and 12/11, 2014. 

  



Invitation to Submit Ballot Arguments 
Deadline April 20, 2015 

 
Florence – Town Clerk Lisa Garcia announced the proposition number for ballot 
measure appearing on the May 19, 2015 Florence Special Election and invites 
interested parties to submit arguments to be included in the Publicity Pamphlet that will 
be distributed prior to the May 19, 2015 Special Election. 
 
The proposition that will appear on the May 19, 2015, ballot is listed below.  
 
Proposition X00: ONE-TIME SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF STATE-

IMPOSED EXPENDITURE LIMITATION: 
 

Proposal submitted by the Town Council of Florence 

Official Title: Resolution No. 1486-14 – A resolution of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
proposing a one-time specific amount in excess of the state-imposed expenditure 
limitation of Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Descriptive Title:   
This measure, under Article IX, Section 20(2)(c), of the Arizona Constitution, allows the 
Town of Florence to exceed the state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 by $15,000,000 to allow the Town to adopt a budget no greater than the 
amount that was adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 

A “YES” vote shall have the effect of continuing existing services by regaining 
local control of the expenditure of existing revenues by Florence residents. 

 
A “NO” vote shall have the effect of preventing the local control of expenditures 
by Florence residents and will require expenditures instead to be limited by the 
state-imposed expenditure formula based on Fiscal Year 1979-80 expenditures, 
resulting in cuts in existing Town services and programs. 

 
Proposition XXXX: 
 
Shall the Town of Florence regain local control and exceed the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by $15,000,000, to allow the Town to 
adopt a budget no greater than the amount that was adopted for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015? 
 
Arguments for or against ballot measures may be filed with the Town Clerk no later than 
5 p.m., Monday, April 20, 2015.  Arguments may be submitted to the Town Clerk, PO 
Box 2670, 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132.  A $200 fee must accompany 
each argument submitted and each argument must not exceed 300 words. Arguments 
must be signed by the submitting person.  Arguments submitted by organizations shall 
be signed on behalf of the organization by one of the executive officers of the 
organization authorized to take the action, or if a politician committee, by the 



Chairperson or Treasurer. No person or organization shall submit more than one 
argument for each ballot measure to be voted on. 

For more information, call the Town Clerk’s Office at 520-868-7552.  

Publish in the paper 4 times: March 19, March 26, April 2, April 9, 2015 dates. 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9a. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell 
                                      Interim Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Utility Easement between the Town of 
                   Florence and Arizona Public Service Company for 
                    the Territory Square Project 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of Utility Easement with APS for Territory Square Meeting date: December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve a utility easement between the Town of Florence and Arizona Public 
Service Company for the Territory Square Project. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The construction of the Territory Square Project necessitates that Arizona Public 
Service Company relocate infrastructure.  Low Mountain Construction, contractor for the 
Town, has recommended that the infrastructure be placed in a permanent location in 
order to save on future relocation costs as well as to serve future needs.  A general 
representation of the easement is attached. 
 
Once the final easement document is prepared, it will be circulated for approval by the 
Town. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of the easement is one dollar and other valuable consideration, and is payable 
through the existing 2014/2015 Fiscal Year budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the utility easement with the Arizona Public Service Company be 
approved and that the Mayor sign the utility easement on behalf of the Town of 
Florence. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Utility Easement Exhibit 
 



Page 1 of 5 
 

 
SW¼ SEC 36 T4S R9E 
33.038073° / -111.387671° 
APN:200-48-006D  
SE-14-44 
WA209565 
WW\JL              
 

UTILITY EASEMENT 
 
 TOWN OF FLORENCE, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter called “Grantor”), is the owner of 
the following described real property located in Pinal County, Arizona (hereinafter called “Grantor’s 
Property”): 
 
 

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 
 
 
 Grantor, for and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and convey to ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMPANY, an Arizona corporation, (hereinafter called “Grantee”), and to its successors and assigns, a 
non-exclusive right, privilege, and easement at locations and elevations, in, upon, over, under, through and 
across, a portion of Grantor’s Property described as follows (herein called the “Easement Premises”): 
 
 

SEE EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 
  
 
 Grantee is hereby granted the right within the Easement Premises to:  construct, reconstruct, replace, 
repair, operate and maintain electrical lines, together with appurtenant facilities and fixtures for use in 
connection therewith, for the transmission and distribution of electricity to, through, across, and beyond 
Grantor's Property; install, operate and maintain telecommunication wires, cables, conduits, fixtures and 
facilities incidental to supplying electricity or for Grantee's own use (said electrical and telecommunication 
lines, facilities and fixtures collectively herein called "Grantee Facilities"); utilize the Easement Premises for 
all other purposes connected therewith; and permit the installation of the wires, fixtures, conduits, or cables 
of any other company. 
 
 Grantee is hereby granted the right, but not the obligation, to trim, prune, cut, and clear away trees, 
brush, shrubs, or other vegetation on, or adjacent to, the Easement Premises whenever in Grantee’s 
judgment the same shall be necessary for the convenient and safe exercise of the rights herein granted. 
 
 Grantee shall at all times have the right of full and free ingress and egress to and along the Easement 
Premises for the purposes herein specified. 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
 Grantor shall maintain clear areas that extend:  1) 3 feet from and around all edges of all switching 
cabinet pads and 2 feet from and around all edges of all transformer pads and other equipment pads, and 2) a 
clear operational area that extends 10 feet immediately in front of all transformer, switching cabinet and 
other equipment openings, and 3) a 6 feet by 6 feet hot-stick operating area off the front left corner of all 
transformers.  No obstructions, trees, shrubs, large landscape rocks, fences, fixtures, or permanent structures 
shall be placed by Grantor within said clear areas; nor shall Grantor install landscape irrigation or sprinkler 
systems within said clear areas.  Landscape irrigation or sprinkler systems installed adjacent to the clear 
areas shall be installed and maintained so that the transformers, switching cabinets or any other equipment 
do not get wet by spray or irrigation. 
 
 Grantor shall not locate, erect or construct, or permit to be located, erected or constructed, any 
building or other structure or drill any well within the limits of the Easement Premises; nor shall Grantor 
plant or permit to be planted any trees within the limits of the Easement Premises without the prior written 
consent of Grantee.  However, Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Premises for purposes that are 
not inconsistent with Grantee’s easement rights herein conveyed and which do not interfere with or 
endanger any of the Grantee Facilities, including, without limitation, granting others the right to use all or 
portions of the Easement Premises for utility or roadway purposes and constructing improvements within the 
Easement Premises such as paving, sidewalks, landscaping, and curbing.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Grantor shall not have the right to lower by more than one foot or raise by more than two feet the surface 
grade of the Easement Premises, and in no event shall a change in the grade compromise Grantee's minimum 
cover requirements or interfere with Grantee's operation, maintenance or repair. 
 
 Grantee agrees that following any installation, excavation, maintenance, repair, or other work 
performed by Grantee within the Easement Premises, the affected area will be restored by Grantee to as 
close to original condition as is reasonably possible, at the expense of Grantee; and that Grantee shall 
indemnify Grantor, to the extent required by law, for any loss, cost or damage incurred by Grantor as a result 
of any negligent installation, excavation, maintenance, repair or other work performed by Grantee within the 
Easement Premises. 
 
 The easement granted herein shall not be deemed abandoned except upon Grantee’s execution and 
recording of a formal instrument abandoning the easement. 
 
 The covenants and agreements herein set forth shall extend and inure in favor and to the benefit of, 
and shall be binding on the heirs, administrators, executors, successors in ownership and estate, assigns and 
lessees of Grantor and Grantee. 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TOWN OF FLORENCE, a municipal corporation, has caused this 
Utility Easement to be executed by its duly authorized representative, this _____ day of _______________, 
2014. 
 
  
 
 TOWN OF FLORENCE, a municipal corporation 
 
  
 By: _____________________________ 
        Printed Name 
 
 Its:  _____________________________ 
        Title 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Signature 
 
 

 
STATE OF ________________ } 
             } ss. 
County of _________________ } 
 
  This instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________________, 201__ 
 
by __________________________________________________________________________ (Grantor). 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
 
Notary Seal:      _____________________________________ 
        Notary Public Signature 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF GRANTOR’S PROPERTY)  
 
 
 

AS RECORDED AS BLOCK 12, BLOCK A, & BLOCK B IN BOOK 1, PAGE 1 OF 
PINAL COUNTY RECORDS AND FILED AS FEE NUMBER 1978-000001 P.C.R. 

 



N89° 44' 56"E
2638.75'

APN: 200-48-006D

OWNER: TOWN OF FLORENCE

A
P

N
:
 
2
0
0
-
4
0
-
0
1
4

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
T

O
W

N
 
O

F
 
F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E

A
P

N
:
 
2
0
0
-
4
0
-
0
1
3

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
T

.
O

.
F

.

M
A

I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

APN: 200-48-006F

APN: 200-48-006E

P
I
N

A
L
 
S

T

1ST STREET

FOUND 3" BRASS CAP

W 1\4 SEC 36 T4S R9E

FD 1/2"

BENT

REBAR

CENTER

SEC36

 T4S

R9E

6
0
.
0
0
'

60.00'

APN: 200-46-012A

OWNER: TOWN OF FLORENCE

619.70'

N89° 52' 46"E 613.55'

S89° 52' 46"W 610.03'

S
0
0
°
 
1
5
'
 
0
4
"
E

9
8
.
0
7
'

L

1

L2

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

BEARING

S43°04'21"E

S46°55'39"W

S00°07'14"E

N90°00'00"W

N00°00'00"E

N46°55'39"E

DISTANCE

5.00'

13.39'

2.60'

5.50'

7.58'

11.42'

L3

L4

L5

L

6

N89° 44' 56"E

155.07'

310.14'

155.07'

N89° 44' 56"E

215.10'

62.50' 92.50'
155.10'

S89° 44' 56"W

5
.
0
0
'

S
0
0
°
 
1
5
'
 
0
4
"
E

1
6
1
.
6
1
'

S00° 15' 04"E

30.00'

EXHIBIT "B"

EXHIBIT SHOWING LOCATION AND LIMITS OF

EASEMENT PREMISES

LEGEND

EASEMENT AREA

SECTION LINE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

MONUMENT FOUND

THE PURPOSE OF THIS EXHIBIT IS TO DEPICT THE DIMENSIONS AND APPROXIMATE LOCATION AND ALIGNMENT OF THE

 ELECTRIC LINE AND EQUIPMENT.  THE LOCATION AND ALIGNMENT OF THE ELECTRIC LINE AND EQUIPMENT AS ACTUALLY

 CONSTRUCTED SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LOCATION AND ALIGNMENT SHOWN ON THIS EXHIBIT.

SW 1/4 SEC 36  T4S R9E

SURVEY: WING-WEDDLE

DRAWN: WING

DATE: 12-3-2014

SCALE: 1:80

AGENT: WING

WA 209565

SHEET 5 OF 5



E 1st St

N 
Pi

na
l S

tN
M

ain
S t

E 1st St

Approx imate APS Easement Boundary
This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be
used at your ow n risk.  The Tow n of Florence makes no
w arranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this map and assumes no liability
for any errors or omissions contained therein, nor for any
direct, indirect, or consequential damages Which may be
caused by its use.  It is the user’s responsibility to verify all
information contained herein.     2014-43

Date Created: 12/3/2014                    Date Modified: 12/3/2014

0 70 14035

Feet /

Tow n of Florence

")

;

Approximate
APS 10' Easement

;

Approximate
APS PAD Site



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9b. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:   2015 Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce  
                     Professional Services Agreement  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: 2015 Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Professional Services Agreement             
Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of  2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve entering into a Professional Services Agreement with the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce for Calendar Year 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town staff and the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce have agreed to terms of 
the Professional Services Agreement as presented to the Town Council.  The 
agreement identifies services the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce will provide 
to the Town of Florence to enhance economic activity and support businesses in 
Florence with a focus on the areas of business enhancement and promotions. 
 
The contract includes, but is not limited to, the following scope of service: 
 

1. Provides the option to extend the contract annually through 2017. 
2. Attendance at the second Town Council meeting each month to present the 

Chamber Business of the Month and any new business owners if applicable. 
3. Submission of four written reports and the annual report that describe the actions 

taken to accomplish the scope of service. 
4. Assisting the Town of Florence with business retention and expansion activities. 
5. Support of Florence businesses by coordinating monthly networking luncheons, 

ribbon cuttings, and a shop local program. 
6. Promotion of Florence by working with local and regional media, providing 

information for the Visit Florence website, and maintaining the community 
calendar of events. 

7. Coordination of at least two special events including Casino Night. 
8. Managing the downtown information kiosk and the Town’s Kiosk Signage 

Program. 
9. Operating the Florence Visitor Center and McFarland State Historic Park.  

 
 



Subject: 2015 Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Professional Services Agreement             
Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 2 of  2 

The full Scope of Service is referenced in the agreement as Exhibit A. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The fiscal impact of the Professional Services Agreement is $65,000.00 for Calendar 
Year 2015. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Professional Services Agreement with the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Professional Services Agreement for Economic Development with the Greater Florence 
Chamber of Commerce. 
 



Page 1 of 10 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WITH THE 

GREATER FLORENCE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____day of    2014, 
by and between the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
("Town"), and the GREATER FLORENCE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, an Arizona 
non-profit corporation ("Consultant"), for economic development services ("Project"). 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated ("A.R.S.") § 9-493 
and 9-500.11, Town is authorized to appropriate monies from its general fund for the 
purposes of improving or enhancing the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the 
Town, encouraging immigration, new industries and investment in the Town, and to print 
and distribute books, pamphlets and maps advertising the advantages of the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, Town desires to retain a consultant to provide economic 

development services and to make payment for the same in accordance with the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement, including all attachments; and 
 

WHEREAS, Consultant has specialized resources, facilities and skills to perform 
such work; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Town agrees to retain and does hereby retain Consultant 

and Consultant agrees to provide the services required according to the terms and 
conditions and consideration set forth below: 
 
1. TERM: The term of this Agreement shall commence from January 1, 2015, to the 

time of completion of services to be rendered by Consultant, but in no event later 
than December 31, 2017. 
 

2. CONSULTANT'S DUTIES: Consultant agrees to perform professional services in 
connection with the Project as outlined in Exhibit A, all to be performed in 
accordance with all Town codes, ordinances, regulations, policies and procedures. 

 
3. COMPENSATION AND REPORTING: In accordance with the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement, Town shall compensate Consultant for its professional services 
as follows: 

 
a. An aggregate sum not to exceed sixty-five thousand dollars ($65,000.00) for 

Calendar Year 2015 with the option to extend the contract annually through 
2017, provided Consultant meets the tasks identified and the reporting 
requirements as outlined in this Agreement and the insurance and 
indemnification requirements described in Sections 8 and 9 of this Agreement, 
subject to satisfactory performance by Consultant, to be determined by the Town 



Page 2 of 10 

Manager or designee, of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
 

b. The Consultant will report to the Town four (4) times throughout each year. The 
four (4) written performance reports shall be submitted no later than the following 
dates: 

i. April 15, 2015 for the first report 
ii. July 15, 2015 for the second report 
iii. October 15, 2015 for the third report  
iv. January 15, 2016  for the fourth report and annual report 

 
c. For each written performance report deemed satisfactory the Consultant is to be 

paid Sixteen thousand two hundred fifty dollars ($16,250.00).  The following 
items must be included: 

 
i. Steps taken to achieve the goals and projects during the quarter as 

outlined in Exhibit A 
ii. Income Statement and Balance Sheet for the quarter 
iii. Other noteworthy events  

 
d. The written annual report shall be completed by the Consultant and submitted to 

the Town Manager, or designee, before the filing deadline of the second Town 
Council meeting in January.  The annual report shall be orally presented to the 
Town Council at the second Town Council meeting in January. The document 
must include at least the following items: 

 
i. Outcomes of each goal and projects as outlined in Exhibit A 
ii. Complete financial report including balance sheet, income statement and 

narrative of the current financial situation 
iii. A detailed analysis of all special events executed, including a thorough 

event analysis and lessons-learned summary 
iv. A detailed report outlining any increases/decreases to membership, 

including methodologies to increase and/or retain membership 
v. Goals and objectives for the upcoming year 
vi. Other noteworthy events 

 
e. If the Consultant is unable to complete the service by the date identified in 

Section 3(b), then the Consultant may provide written recommendations for an 
extension of time to the Town Manager or designee, to request additional time to 
complete the project. The recommendations shall be received by the Town 
Manager or designee prior to the completion date. Scheduling of services shall 
be done by mutual agreement between the Consultant and the Town Manager or 
designee.  In the written request for a time extension, the Consultant shall 
provide rationale as to why the service cannot be completed and identify a 
specific date when the project shall be completed.   

 



Page 3 of 10 

f. The Town shall not compensate the Consultant if the Consultant does not 
complete the services by December 31, 2015, or the Consultant does not 
provide a request for an extension of time to the Town Manager or designee prior 
to the completion date identified in this Agreement or other date if determined by 
the Consultant and the Town Manager or designee. 

 
g. The Town Manager or designee may refuse to grant a time extension to 

complete the service, or dispute the quality of service provided by the Consultant, 
if written notice of refusal is provided within ten (10) days of the Consultant’s 
request for a time extension or when an activity is completed. The written notice 
shall specify the grounds for refusal, and the Consultant is permitted ten (10) 
days from the written notice of refusal to redress the grounds for refusal.  Should 
the Town Manager or designee disagree that the ground for refusal are properly 
redressed, the dispute may be brought by the Consultant before an Arbiter 
recognized by the Pinal County Superior Court for binding arbitration of the 
dispute.  The prevailing party in such arbitration shall recover all costs including: 
all arbitration expenses, collection expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
other costs to be determined by the Arbiter in such action. 
 

h. Consultant will monitor and actively seek other sources of public or private 
funding that becomes available to Consultant and will advise the Town Manager 
or designee of these opportunities.  

 
i. Exhausting the total amount payable pursuant to Section 3(a) shall not relieve 

Consultant of its obligations to perform services. Should Town request additional 
services beyond those specified in Section 2, Consultant shall charge, and Town 
shall pay for, a rate as negotiated between Town and Consultant and executed in 
writing. 

 
4. CONSULTANT BILLING: Consultant shall submit invoices to the Town for payment 

upon completion of each phase of work outlined in Exhibit A.  Payment shall be 
made to Consultant within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt.  The 
Town’s payment shall be made only in the name of the Consultant appearing on this 
Agreement.  For additional services as negotiated per Section 3(i), Consultant shall 
bill Town on a time and expense basis in a total amount not to exceed the 
negotiated amount. Town shall pay such billings within thirty (30) calendar days of 
the date of receipt or as otherwise negotiated. 

 
5. CONSULTANT'S STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: While performing the services, 

Consultant shall exercise the reasonable professional care and skill customarily 
exercised by reputable members of Consultant's profession and shall use 
reasonable diligence and best judgment while exercising its professional skill and 
expertise. Consultant shall be responsible for all errors and omissions Consultant 
commits in the performance of this Agreement. 



Page 4 of 10 

 
6. NOTICES: All notices and requests to the other party required under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and sent by first class certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, addressed to the following personnel: 

 
 

Town of Florence  Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce 
Town Manager   Executive Director 
P.O. Box 2670  P.O. Box 929 
775 North Main Street Florence, AZ  85132 
Florence, AZ 85132     

 
7. TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) 

working days written notice. If this Agreement is terminated, Consultant shall be paid 
for services performed to the date of receipt of such termination notice. In the event 
of such termination, Consultant shall deliver to Town all work in any state of 
completion at the date of effective termination. 
 

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The Consultant, at Consultant’s own expense, 
shall purchase and maintain the herein stipulated minimum insurance with 
companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or 
approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms 
satisfactory to the Consultant/Town of Florence. 

 
All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during any 
term of this Agreement; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town of 
Florence, constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
The Consultant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Town of Florence shall not contribute to it.  Any failure 
to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an 
insurance policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to 
protect the Town of Florence. 

 
The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town of Florence, 
its agents, officers, officials, and employees as Additional Insured. Additionally, the 
State of Arizona must be named as additional insured. The policy shall be endorsed 
to include the following additional insured language: “The State of Arizona and 
Arizona State Parks officers, officials, agents, and employees shall be named as 
additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by or 
on behalf of the contractor”. 

 
General Liability:  Consultant shall, at Consultant’s expense, maintain a policy of 
comprehensive  public  liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for 



Page 5 of 10 

each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.   
 

The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, 
personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, the 
liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which 
coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 
000211093(October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, U. 

 
Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain a 
sunset provision or commutation clause, or any provision, which would serve to limit 
third party action over claims.  The Commercial General Liability additional insured 
endorsement shall be at least as broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, 
Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

 
Certificates of Insurance: In the event any insurance policy(ies) required by this 
Agreement is (are) written on a “claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for two 
years past the expiration of any term of this Agreement as evidenced by annual 
Certificates of Insurance. 

 
If a policy does expire during any term of this Agreement, a renewal certificate must 
be sent to the Town of Florence no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration 
date. 

 
9. INDEMNIFICATION:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, 

indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, its agents, officers, officials and 
employees from and against all tort claims, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either wholly or in 
part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Consultant, 
its agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance of this 
Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or 
expenses are caused in part by the Town.  

 
Consultant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town of Florence, its 
agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any tort 
claims, damages, losses or expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of 
use resulting there from, caused either wholly or in part by Consultant’s acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, work or services in the performance of this Agreement 
including any employee of the Consultant or any other person for whose acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, work or services the Consultant may be legally liable, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are caused 
in part by the Town. 

 



Page 6 of 10 

The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in no 
way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this Section. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Consultant shall at all times during Consultant's 
performance of the services retain Consultant's status as independent contractor. 
Consultant's employees shall under no circumstances be considered or held to be 
employees or agents of Town.  Town shall have no obligation to pay or withhold 
state or federal taxes or provide workers' compensation or unemployment insurance 
for or on behalf of them or Consultant. 

 
11. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE: The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 

be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona. 
Any action at law or in equity brought by either party for the purpose of enforcing a 
right or rights provided for in this Agreement shall be tried in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in Pinal County, State of Arizona. The parties hereby waive all provisions 
of law providing for a change of venue in such proceeding to any other county. In the 
event either party shall bring suit to enforce any term of this Agreement or to recover 
any damages for and on account of the breach of any term or condition in this 
Agreement, it is mutually agreed that the prevailing party in such action shall recover 
all costs including: all litigation and appeal expenses, collection expenses, 
reasonable attorneys' fees, necessary witness fees and court costs to be determined 
by the court in such action. 

 
12. OWNERSHIP OF RECORDS AND REPORTS: All of the files, reports, documents, 

information and data prepared or assembled by Consultant under this Agreement 
shall be considered work product which is owned by Consultant; provided, however, 
that upon request by the Town, copies of such files, reports, documents, information 
and data shall be provided to the Town at any time the Town requires such 
information, in accordance with the limitations of this Agreement. 

 
13. NONASSIGNMENT: This Agreement has been entered into based upon the 

personal reputation, expertise and qualifications of Consultant. Neither party to this 
Agreement shall assign its interest in the Agreement, either in whole or in part. 
Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder 
without the prior written consent of Town. 

 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement and any attachments represent the entire 

agreement between Town and Consultant and supersede all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, express or implied, written or oral. It is mutually 
understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto. Written and signed amendments shall automatically become part of the 
Supporting Documents, and shall supersede any inconsistent provision therein; 
provided, however, that any apparent inconsistency shall be resolved, if possible, by 



Page 7 of 10 

construing the provisions as mutually complementary and supplementary. 
 
15. SEVERABILITY: If any part, term or provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, 

unenforceable or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining portions and 
provisions hereof shall not be affected. 

 
16. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: The provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511 relating to 

cancellation of contracts due to conflicts of interest shall apply to this contract. 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed 
by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE:    GREATER FLORENCE CHAMBER OF  
        COMMERCE: 
 
 
              
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor    Damon Anderson, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Town Attorney 



Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT A 
 
1. Business Retention & Growth 
 

a) Attend the second Town Council meeting each month to present the Chamber 
Business of the Month and any new business owners if applicable. 

b) Assist the Town of Florence with the implementation and execution of a business 
retention and expansion program.  Notify the Town immediately if businesses 
have shared plans to relocate or downsize operations.  Attend meetings called by 
the Town to address business retention and expansion issues. 

c) Hold at least one (1) quarterly business seminar designed to encourage, educate 
and inform businesses about current issues and expose them to any 
partnerships, programs or resources available in the region. 

d) Develop in-house business planning services to assist local businesses with 
issues such as marketing, feasibility studies, financial planning, and any other 
services deemed necessary to meet the immediate needs of the Florence 
business community.  Develop partnerships with Central Arizona College, the 
Small Business Association, and other organizations to offer local businesses 
greater access to business planning services. 

 
2. Marketing 

 
a) Coordinate and execute monthly Chamber luncheon events that feature 

speakers and/or information on issues impacting local, regional or statewide 
business interests.  Provide attendance for the Town Manager, or designee, and 
Town Council Liaison for each Chamber luncheon event. 

b) Manage the informational kiosk in downtown Florence. 
c) Actively manage the Town’s Kiosk Signage Program and promote it to local and 

regional businesses. 
d) Coordinate and execute business ribbon cutting and ground breaking events, as 

needed.  
e) Develop, implement, and promote a program that educates the public about the 

benefits of shopping at local businesses.  Seek out potential partnerships with 
organizations to build upon established data about the benefits of shopping local. 

f) Work with local and regional media outlets to encourage positive coverage and 
attention to local Florence businesses. 

g) Support Town events (e.g. Christmas on Main, Fourth of July Celebration, Junior 
Parada, etc.) by encouraging businesses to remain open through the duration of 
the event. 

h) Coordinate and execute at least two (2) annual special events, such as Casino 
Night.  Provide 24 tickets for the entertaining portion of the event.  The town will 
reimburse the chamber for meal costs for the event.  

 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 

3. Florence Visitor Center 
 
General Operations 
 

a) Operate the Florence Visitor Center during normal hours from October 1 
through May 31, Monday through Saturday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. The Visitor 
Center will operate on a summer hours schedule June 1 through September 30, 
Monday through Saturday, 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 
b) Provide the following services to the general public during operating hours: 
 

1) Access to public telephones (local calls only); drinking water; and provision of 
general information about the Town of Florence, the region, and the State. 

 
2) Provision of information racks accessible to the public on weekends and 

holidays including: Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, 
Christmas, and New Year’s Day. 

 
Marketing 
 

a) Assist the Town with managing the Visit Florence website by providing timely 
and accurate information for the site as necessary. Encourage web traffic 
between www.florenceazchamber.com and www.visitflorenceaz.com through 
social media, imbedded links, and any other methods deemed necessary. 

 
b) Maintain an up-to-date Annual Florence Special Events calendar.  Highlight 

Chamber of Commerce, Town of Florence, and other community wide events. 
 
c) Work with the Town of Florence and local business community to develop a 

strategy to attract visitors to the Town of Florence. 
 
4. McFarland State Historic Park 
 
General Operations 
 

a) Operate McFarland State Historic Park consistent with the Florence Visitor 
Center operation hours. 

 
b) Provide information to the public on the park and exhibits located within 

McFarland State Historic Park. 
 
Marketing 
 

a) Actively advertise and promote all programs, special events, and activities held 
at McFarland State Historic Park. 

 



Page 10 of 10 

b) Actively advertise the location of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce 
and the Town of Florence Visitor Center at McFarland State Historic Park. 

 
5. List the “Town of Florence” as a sponsor for all events and print materials 
produced by the Consultant. 
 
6. Provide annual membership in the name of the “Town of Florence”. 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval to sign a contract with Apache  
                   Underground and Excavation LLC,  for the Bailey  
                   Street Waterline Project. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Contract with Apache Underground & Excavation, LLC                          Meeting date: December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve signing a contract with Apache Underground and Excavation LLC, for 
the Bailey Street Waterline Project.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On November 17, 2014, Council approved the issuance of a Notice of Award to Apache 
Underground and Excavation LLC, for the Bailey Street Waterline Project.  Staff 
requests that Council approve the signing of the contract for the work. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of the contract is $479,334.00.  There is approximately $830,000 in the 
2014/2015 Fiscal Year budget for the project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Mayor sign the contract with Apache Underground and 
Excavation LLC, on behalf of the Town. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Contract 
 













































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
 9d. 

MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Florence Special Event License 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Special Event Liquor Licenses   Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control on 
Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association’s applications for a Special Event Liquor 
License for  social hours on January 8, January 22, February 5, February 19, March 5, 
March 19, November 12,  and December 10, 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association has submitted eight applications for a 
Special Event License.   The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, 
civic, fraternal, political, or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for 
consumption as a fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a 
cumulative total of 10 days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is 
$25 per day, payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.  The 
$200 check will be forwarded to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses upon 
Council’s approval. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications 



















































































MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
DECEMBER 1, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:08 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 1 of 8 
 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC/COUNCIL RESPONSE:  
Call to the Public for Public Comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by 
those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda. 
 
Ms. Adrianna Lahr, Florence Resident, stated that the Florence Dog Park is in need of 
routine maintenance including the repair of the water fountain that has been broken for 
three years.  She stated she would like to see the park taken better care of and inquired 
which department is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the facility. 
 
Mayor Rankin acknowledged Ms. Lahr’s concerns and asked the Parks Department to 
follow up and report back to him in two weeks. 
 
Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated that he was leaving his position with the 
Town.  He stated the position has been challenging, yet rewarding, providing him the 
opportunity to work with highly talented and dedicated Town employees.  He thanked 
Ms. Lisa Garcia for her continued support and professional advice throughout his tenure 
with the Town.  He advised the Council to be skeptical of those who try to undermine 
the Council as they are doing great things for the Town.  
 
Mr. Dave Downey, Florence Resident, stated that he believes Councilmember Walter 
would be the right person to be elected as Vice-Mayor.  He stated that she is a civic-
minded person who recently was promoted to Vice-Principal of Walker-Butte 
Elementary.  He stated that she is committed to her family, neighbors and community, 
and represents the Town of Florence well. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, thanked Councilmember Celaya and Vice-Mayor 
Smith for their service to the Town.   She thanked the Parks and Recreation Department 
for the Junior Parada parade on Saturday and was happy to see so many participants 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 

and attendees at the event.  She stated that Alison Feliz, Recreation Programmer, is 
doing a great job with the Concert in the Park series and hopes it continues. 
 
Ms. Micky McGraw, Florence Resident, stated she has not received any communication 
from the Town Manager regarding the zero-usage water and sewer fees charged to 
part-time residents that she brought to Council at their last regular meeting.  She stated 
that collectively, Caliente RV Park, Florence Gardens and Tierra Del Sol, with an 
estimated 1758 RV spots of which 1540 are seasonal, pay approximately $65,957.30 in 
zero-usage fees for water and sewer monthly.   She stated she would like to understand 
why the fees are so high and would like to have the billing protocol reviewed for a more 
equitable fee for zero-usage times. 
 
Mayor Rankin requested Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, to meet with Ms. 
McGraw in the next 24 hours. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated he would collect the information and contact Ms. McGraw. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the November 3, November 17 and 
November 21, 2014 Council Minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith and carried to 
approve the Council Meeting minutes of November 3, November 17 and November 21, 
2014.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the Junior Parada parade and rodeo were amazing.   
She thanked the following: 

 Councilmember Celaya and Vice-Mayor Smith for their service.  
 Mr. Mannato for his legal guidance over the years.  He will be missed. 
 Ms. Garcia, for all her hard work and for everything she does for Council and for 

the Town of Florence.   
 
Councilmember Walter welcomed the newly seated Councilmembers and looks forward 
to working with them. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated he wished Councilmember Celaya and Vice-Mayor 
Smith a wonderful life away from Town Council and appreciated their hard work and 
service. He congratulated the new Councilmembers and looks forward to working with 
them.  He stated that he appreciated Mr. Mannato’s work with the Town.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated it was a pleasure working with Councilmember 
Celaya and Vice-Mayor Smith.  She stated Mr. Mannato has done a great job over the 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 

year, performing his duties with integrity and honesty, and will be missed.  She stated 
that she was pleased to see Ms. Garcia being recognized for her hard work and service 
to the Town.  
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that it has been an honor to serve the community.  He 
stated serving on the Town Council has provided him the opportunity for personal and 
professional growth.  He stated over the past 10 years he has seen the Town grow and 
develop completing multiple projects  He thanked staff for teaching him, providing 
integrity and honesty to the process, and providing a strong foundation for the Town and 
Council.  He expressed his appreciation to all the Councilmembers, past and present, 
and wished the new Councilmembers success in their new positions. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated the Town has the best departments he has seen.  He stated 
the service level they provide the community is outstanding.  He thanked staff for their 
commitment and support to the Council and Town, and to the past and current 
Councilmembers who have served the community well.  He reminded the current 
Councilmembers and the newly seated members that the Town Council is made up of 
elected members and as such they need to listen to the voters. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated he is sad to see Councilmember Celaya and Vice-Mayor Smith 
leave Council.  He stated that that he agrees with Councilmember Celaya regarding the 
numerous accomplishments of the Town over the years and those accomplishments 
came to be through the efforts of the Town Council, staff and the voters of Florence past 
and present.  He stated the Town will continue to grow and move forward making 
Florence better.  He thanked Councilmember Celaya and Vice-Mayor Smith for 
participating in those efforts. 
 
Mayor Rankin expressed his appreciation for the patience and understanding of the 
spouses and family members of those who serve or have served on the Town Council.  
He stated that he understands that the needs of the Town can take time away from 
family and appreciates their support of this commitment to the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to send best wishes to Mr. Wayne Costa, Public 
Works Director, and hopes he gets well soon. 
 
SWEARING IN OF THE NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
Honorable Steven J. Fuller swore in new Councilmembers: Rebecca Guilin, John Lee 
Anderson and re-elected Councilmember Valerie Woolridge. 

 
ROLL CALL: 

 
Present: Rankin, Woolridge, Hawkins, Walter, Montaño, Guilin, Anderson  
      
PRESENTATIONS  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 
 
 

Mayor Tom Rankin recognizes former Vice-Mayor Smith for his dedication and 
service to the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented a pocket watch to Mr. Smith in gratitude for her service to the 
Town.  He expressed his appreciation for Mr. Smith’s service as Vice-Mayor and looks 
forward to continuing to work with Mr. Smith throughout the Town in various activities. 

 
Mayor Tom Rankin recognizes former Councilmember Celaya for his dedication 
and service to the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented a gift certificate to the Painted Guitar to Mr. Celaya in gratitude 
for his service to the Town.    

 
Presentation of Service Award to Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented to Ms. Garcia a plaque representing her loyal dedication and 
commitment to the Town of Florence for 20 years.  He stated that Ms. Garcia joined the 
Town of Florence in 1994 as the Executive Secretary/Deputy Town Clerk.  She was 
promoted to Town Clerk in 1997 and in 2011 added to her position, Deputy Town 
Manager.  He stated that Ms. Garcia earned her Master Municipal Clerk designation in 
2006 and was elected twice as President of the Arizona Clerks Association. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that Ms. Garcia graciously performs her duties providing guidance 
to Council and staff, representing the Town of Florence, its history and its community 
atmosphere with genuine love and compassion for the Town.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that it has been a pleasure working for the Town and with staff.  She 
has enjoyed working for the community and looks forward to the opportunity to work for 
the Town for another 10 years. 
 
Ms. Garcia’s family presented to her with a balloon and flowers. 
  
Public Hearing on Resolution No. 1486-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, PROPOSING A ONE-TIME 
SPECIFIC AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE STATE-IMPOSED EXPENDITURE 
LIMITATION AND SETTING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR MAY 19, 2015. 
 
Mr. Michael Farina, Finance Director, stated that with the failure of the Home Rule 
Option in August 2014, the Town is now subject to the state-imposed expenditure 
limitation which will significantly reduce the Town’s budget for the next two fiscal years. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that the Arizona State Constitution gives the voters of Florence the 
ability to regain local control over the development of the budget rather than being 
restricted by the state.  He stated if the voters authorize a specific amount in excess of 
the state-imposed expenditure limitation, the voters would be providing the ability to 
develop a budget that will maintain the current level of services that the citizens of 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 

Florence have come to expect in the areas that include, police, fire, economic and 
community development, parks and recreation, water, wastewater and sanitation 
services.  He stated that staff is recommending the Florence voters authorize to exceed 
the state-imposed expenditure limitation for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 by $15,000,000, 
allowing the Town to adopt a budget no greater than the amount that was adopted for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that the Town is required to hold two public hearings, this being the 
first one.  He stated the second public hearing will be December 15, 2014.  Immediately 
following the second hearing, Council must convene in a special meeting and vote on 
the proposed excess expenditure special election.  He stated if approved, a record of 
the vote and the purposes of the excess expenditure special election must be published 
in the newspaper.  He stated on January 5, 2015 Town Council will call for the special 
election to be held on the third Tuesday in May 2015. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired the following:   

 What will occur to the funds that are collected and are not spent under Home 
Rule? 

 Will the spending limitation reduce tax payer’s obligations, and if so, when would 
that occur? 

 
Mr. Farina stated that the funds that are collected through taxes, that are not able to be 
spent based on the Home Rules limitations, will be left in the Town’s bank accounts.  He 
stated that tax payers will not see a reduction in their taxes but a reduction in services 
only. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the proposed election in May is then asking to 
spend the money the Town will be collecting and to continue services at our current 
levels. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the Public Hearing, being no comments, closed the Public 
Hearing.  

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. *Approval of a utility easement between the Town of Florence and Arizona 

Public Service Company. 
 
b. *Approval of the acceptance of public infrastructure for maintenance into 

the Town of Florence within dedicated rights of way.  Pulte Home Corp. has 
completed the public improvements necessary for the acceptance of: 

I. Hunt Highway Phase I (partial) and Phase IV from STA 60+62.97 
Phase I northerly to STA 22+50 Phase IV. 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 

II. Franklin Road from STA 32+97.05 (west of Hunt Highway) to STA 
36+23.58 (east of Hunt Highway). 

III. Spirit Way Phase III from STA 24+00.05 to STA 42+00 
 

*Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control to 
approve a Special Event Liquor License to the Florence Gardens Mobile Home 
Association for a January 25, 2015 3Parks Wine and Micro Brew Fund Raiser. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of item 10b. 
 

b.    Approval of the acceptance of public infrastructure for maintenance into 
the Town of Florence within dedicated rights of way.  Pulte Home Corp. has 
completed the public improvements necessary for the acceptance of: 
IV. Hunt Highway Phase I (partial) and Phase IV from STA 60+62.97 

Phase I northerly to STA 22+50 Phase IV. 
V. Franklin Road from STA 32+97.05 (west of Hunt Highway) to STA 

36+23.58 (east of Hunt Highway). 
VI. Spirit Way Phase III from STA 24+00.05 to STA 42+00 

 
Councilmember Walter inquired as to the location of the property. 
 
Mr. Dan Bonow, Pulte Homes Corp., stated that the property in question starts on Merrill 
Ranch Parkway going north to Franklin Road. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the area has been fully landscaped including the 
area north of the school. 
 
Mr. Bonow stated there is an area north of the school towards Franklin Road that is 
owned by the LDS church that will be landscaped when the property is developed. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to approve item 10b. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of nomination and election of a Vice-Mayor. 
 
Mayor Rankin provided a brief description of the duties of the Vice-Mayor that include 
running meetings when the Mayor is not in attendance, attending out-of-town meetings,  
and public appearances when the Mayor is not available.  
 
Councilmember Montaño nominated Councilmember Walter as Vice-Mayor.   
 
Councilmember Walter accepted the nomination.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 

Councilmember Hawkins nominated Councilmember Woolridge as Vice-Mayor.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge accepted the nomination. 
 
Roll call vote to elect Councilmember Walter as Vice-Mayor: 
Councilmember Montaño:  Yes 
Councilmember Walter:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  No 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  No 
Councilmember Woolridge: No 
Mayor Rankin:     Yes 
 
Motion passed Yes:  4; No:   3 
 
Councilmember Walter is elected as Vice-Mayor.  
 
Announcement of the Mayor’s appointments to the following liaison positions: 

 
Anthem Area  
Budget Committee      
Central Arizona Association of Governments  
Emergency Operations Center     
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce     
Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. 
Florence Unified School District     
Four Parks Area (Florence Gardens/Caliente/Casitas) 
Historic District Advisory Commission    
Leagues of Cities and Towns Resolution Committee  
Joint Use Library Advisory Board     
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Pinal County Government Alliance     
Pinal Partnership   
Planning and Zoning Commission 
Public Safety Retirement (Police and Fire) 
Maricopa Association of Governments  
Native American Community Tribes 

 (Tohono O’odham Village and Gila River Indian Community) 
 
The Mayoral appointments were tabled to the December 15, 2014 Town Council 
meeting.  

 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Hawkins congratulated Councilmember Walter for being elected Vice-
Mayor. 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
December 1, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 
Councilmember Montaño congratulated Councilmember Walter for being elected Vice-
Mayor and Councilmember Woolridge for being nominated.   
 
Councilmember Guilin congratulated Councilmember Walter for being elected Vice-
Mayor.  She stated that she is sad that Mr. Mannato is leaving the Town as he has been 
a tenacious and outstanding Town Attorney. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the next meeting of Council will be on December 8, 2014. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:55 pm.  
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on December 1, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
DECEMBER 8, 2014, AT 4:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 4:34 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 

 
Present: Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Montaño, Guilin, Anderson  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 1 of 8 
 

staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, stated that she did not feel tonight’s meeting was 
communicated thoroughly to the community.  She recommend to have Council meeting 
notices publicized in the paper, the Wednesday prior to the meeting, to give the citizens 
a better opportunity to attend all meetings.  She stated that she feels this type of notice 
would assist with the transparency of the Council. 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: For the purpose of discussion of the public 
body, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(1), to interview candidates for Interim 
Prosecutor and Interim Town Attorney; and for contract negotiations with said 
attorneys pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(4).   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session.  

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract for an Interim Town 
Prosecutor. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 
 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
approve a contract with Richard V. Husk as interim Town Prosecutor. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with a law firm to 
provide Interim Legal Services to the Town of Florence.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
enter into contract with Dickinson Wright, PLLC, to provide interim legal services to the 
Town of Florence. 

 
Resolution No. 1490-14:   
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1490-14 by title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AFFIRMING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S PREFERENCES REGARDING THE 
PROPOSED ADOT NORTH-SOUTH FREEWAY CORRIDOR. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the North-South 
Corridor is a 45 mile freeway between Apache Junction and Eloy.  He stated that ADOT 
is seeking comments on specific route alternatives that will be studied in greater detail 
during the next phase of the study.  Town Council had previously approved corridor 
refinements allowing the Town to better plan for future density and to ensure that the 
freeway is beneficial to the Town.  He stated that the location of the corridor was a 
critical consideration in the planning of Territory Square Zoning District and the North 
End Framework Vision Plan. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that ADOT held public hearings in November 2014.  The comment 
period for this stage of the study will remain open until January 9, 2015.  Staff believes it 
is essential that the Town continue to be proactive in this process to ensure that the 
final corridor is as close as possible to the preferences of the Town.  He stated that the 
resolution affirms the preferences of the Town, denoting the segments of the corridor 
that are preferred and essential to the long term prosperity and sustainability of the 
Town.  He stated that the information regarding where to send written comments to 
ADOT is located on the Town website.  All comments must be received no later than 
January 9, 2015. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1490-14. 
 
WORK SESSION WITH LOCAL VENDORS REGARDING FARMERS MARKET 
DOWNTOWN.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 
 

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that the Chamber of Commerce 
helped develop the Farmer’s Market in 2002 and during their overseeing of the market 
requested that the vendor fees be waived for this weekly event.   
 
Ms. Evans stated in 2011 the Town approved a policy that required all venders to have 
a vendors permit when participating in any event within the Town.  Based on the criteria 
of the policy, vendors would need a regular or exemption permit in order to participate in 
the events.  Most of the vendors for the Farmer’s Market would qualify for an exemption.    
She stated that staff is trying to bring the Arriola Square Farmer’s Market into 
compliance with current Town policy. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the following is being recommended: 

- Make it an artisans market and allow vendors with hand crafted products 
- Draw produce vendors and value-added agricultural products.  

 
Ms. Evans stated that staff is proposing to move the Farmer’s Market to 6th Street; near 
Padilla Park and change the days and times of operation to better accommodate the 
public who commute into Town on a daily basis.  She stated that it is being 
recommended that the Farmer’s Market be held on the 1st and 3rd Thursday of the 
month, from 11:00 am to 3:00 pm, and to be in conjunction with other activities already 
planned at Padilla Park. The vendors would be required to have a vendor permit with 
the Town and to set up a free-standing booth.  They would not be allowed to sell directly 
out of their vehicles.  She stated this would preserve the high-quality image of the 
market.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that a majority of Farmer Markets held in our region are held on 
Saturdays.  She stated that Flagstaff holds a market on Sundays during the summer 
months and Cottonwood holds their market July through October on Thursday 
evenings.  She stated that all the markets had artistic and food/produce vendors.  A 
majority of the markets researched were started by a municipality then were turned over 
to the private sector once they become successful.  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired what the definition of handmade would be for the 
market. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the product being sold must be made by the selling vendor.  She 
stated that the market is for hobbyists who need an outlet for their arts and crafts and is 
not for items that are mass-produced. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the name of the market would have to change to better reflect 
the mix of artisans and produce/food vendors.  He stated when the Farmer’s Market first 
started it ran from one end of Main Street to the other and now there are just a few 
vendors at Arriola Square.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 
 

Mayor Rankin stated that on Saturdays there are only a few shops open on Main Street.  
He would like to see the market reach from Arriola Square to Padilla Park bringing the 
public out to Main Street.  He stated that he disagrees with changing the market day to 
Thursday as he does not believe it would have the attendance needed to be successful 
and that the Town has a higher level of traffic on Fridays and Saturdays that would lend 
to a more successful market. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what the fee was for a special event permit. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that if a vendor made more than $3,000 a year they would be 
considered a commercial vendor and the fee for the license would be $10.  She stated 
that a majority of the vendors who participate in the Farmer’s Market would qualify for 
an exemption as they make less than $3,000 a year and there would not be a fee for the 
special event permit. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she was in favor of the current licensing policy as 
it provides the Town with the information needed to know who is participating in the 
event, what they are selling and if there is a problem, which can be held accountable. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how extensive is the application for an event license. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that a license for a permanent business is several pages and requires 
a great amount of information whereas a special event permit is only one page. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that based on the information provided the Town 
should start with the Thursday market but still allow the Saturday market until the 
Thursday market is successful. 
 
Mayor Rankin is concerned that the Towns and Cities researched are larger than 
Florence and have a higher population to draw from for a market. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated it might be easier to get more vendors from some of 
these areas to come to Florence and will be available on a Thursday verses a Saturday. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that if the goal is to capture those who commute into 
Florence for work, the hours of market would need to be later in the afternoon into early 
evening to allow workers to take their purchases directly home. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if the market could be held on Thursday and 
Saturday. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if vendors have been located for a Thursday market. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she has been able to make contact with five local vendors who 
would be interested in the Thursday market. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 
Mayor Rankin stated that there is a concern with produce vendors who have a limited 
window to sell their produce and if they do not make money, they will not continue to 
participate.  He stated that advertising for the market is going to be critical to its 
success. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that it might be a good idea to start the market on a 
seasonal basis until it grows and can sustain a year-round program. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she is recommending the market to be seasonal from October 
through April.  
 
Councilmember Montaño stated there is a concern with preferential treatment of 
location at the market.  He stated that vendor space should be on a first-come-first-
service basis as long as the vendor has a permit.  He does not believe a vendor should 
have a reserved location. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he has wanted to see advertising for the Town and 
this would be an opportunity to promote the Town and the market. 
 
Councilmember Guilin inquired if a cost study has been completed to determine the cost 
of the market including advertising, operations and staff time. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the market does not currently have a budget but is looking at 
using free social media and with a few hundred dollars a month for print advertising the 
market would receive strong local media exposure.  She stated that she has estimated 
that it will take approximately 20 hours of staff time to coordinate and operate the 
market weekly. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to the number of vendors that have been identified to 
participate in the market. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she has identified 5 artisans that would be interested in the 
market in addition to the craft and jewelry vendors.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to see more input from produce vendors and 
what they believe would be the right day of the week for the market, times, and 
seasonality that would help a new market be successful. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he would recommend a name for the market like 
the Florence Peoples Market. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she has a vendor from Casa Grande that may be 
interested in the participating in the market and will provide that information to Ms. 
Evans. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Ms. Evans stated that she will continue to build her vendor list and develop diversity in 
the types of vendors; their availability and the thoughts on what they think will work and 
make the market successful. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what the thoughts have been for those vendors who do not 
fit within the categories of a Farmers Market. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the model that is being used to develop the market for the Town 
is based on the markets that are being run in other towns and cities in the area.   
 
Ms. Debbie Kiern, Florence Resident, stated that the current vendors of the market are 
willing to work with the Town and that they currently do keep a written record of the 
vendors that participate each week with their contact information which is then turned 
over to Christy Cox.  She stated that she does believe having the market two nights a 
week would be good and with more advertising could be very successful. 
 
Mr. Donald Underdonk II, Florence Resident, stated that he agrees the name of the 
market should be broader and reflect the community.  He stated that he has been 
working with Debbie Kiern to develop a small brochure for the market to be distributed 
in businesses around Town and in Coolidge and Casa Grande but is holding off until the 
situation with the Town is resolved.  He stated that he believes not holding the market 
on a Saturday would be detrimental to the market as they do have many customers that 
might be lost if the market is moved.  He stated that he does agree with the Town that 
the market does need to be organized and properly advertised. 
 
Mr. Dennis Irvin, Florence Resident, stated that he would be the one vendor that does 
not fit the product compliance for the market.  He stated that he would move to a 
different location but would like to stay in Florence if possible.   
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, inquired if the new location will be on a back 
parking lot.  She stated that she understands that the group would like to stay on Main 
Street. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she will inquire with other municipalities that have Farmer’s 
Markets what their licensing process is and build a matrix of produce vendors inquiring 
what they would need to participate in the Town’s Farmer’s Market. 
 
Mr. Larry Pfeiffer, Florence Resident, stated the Farmer’s Market group has been self-
governing and believes the compliance and permitting process the Town is concerned 
with is adding a level of confusion.  He stated that he believes Main Street is in a great 
need of more retail options and the Farmer’s Market has been operating for 12 years on 
Main Street and been able to sustain itself when many other businesses have not.  He 
stated that he would like to see the Town encourage and support the Saturday market 
along with developing a Thursday market. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 
 

Mr. Montoya stated that he would recommend that staff go back and do the research 
that has been discussed this evening and come back to Council in January with a study 
session to review staff’s findings.  He stated that while the research is being done, the 
Town should allow the Arriola Square Farmer’s Market to continue as it normally does. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he agrees with an additional study session in January 2015 
with members of Council in concurrence. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he was impressed with the attendance numbers 
at the Holiday Parade Friday night and complimented staff for their hard work.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he would like to see the attendance numbers 
continue through Founder’s Day and Country Thunder upcoming events in the spring. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he would like to see the Farmer’s Market situation 
resolved in a timely fashion with simplicity. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter congratulated Alison Feliz, Recreation Programmer, who is 
graduating with her Bachelors in Parks and Recreation. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he along with the Town Council send their condolences to the 
Celaya family for their loss and to the families of Manual Ruiz and Jim Martin.  He 
stated that the parade was a beautiful event and he appreciated the 40 entries and the 
efforts of staff. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:53 pm.  
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
December 8, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 
 

_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council special meeting held on December 8, 2014, and that the meeting was duly 
called to order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a.  

MEETING DATE: December 15, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bryan Hughes 
                                     Parks & Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Fitness and Recreation Center 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Proposed Fitness and Recreation Center  Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

 
Option #1: Motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposals to the short-listed 
design-build firms for the proposed Fitness and Recreation Center and establish a 
maximum project budget of $6,750,000. 
 
Option #2: Motion to suspend the project indefinitely due to budgetary constraints. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
At the Work Session on July 31, 2014, the Town Council directed staff to get cost 
estimates for construction of a Fitness and Recreation Center that will allow for indoor 
athletics, cardio and strength training, and other recreation pursuits. 
 
On September 15, 2014, the Town Council further directed staff to issue a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) to secure a design-build team for a Fitness and Recreation Center. 
 
Due to state procurement laws related to design-build, a Fitness and Recreation Center 
project needed to be procured separately from the Library/Recreation Complex project, 
but could be constructed concurrently. 
 
On October 23, 2014, the Town Clerk’s Office documented the receipt of 12 Statements 
of Qualifications (SOQ) for the above referenced project.  The project selection committee 
reviewed and scored the SOQs based on the criteria referenced in the RFQ and short-
listed the five most qualified design-build teams as follows: 
 

1. Haydon Building Corp/Architekton 
2. Low Mountain Construction/Hidell and Associates 
3. Sun Eagle/Breckenridge Group 
4. Adolfson & Peterson Construction/Gabor Lorant Architects 
5. D.L. Withers Construction/Saemisch + De Bella Architects 



Subject: Proposed Fitness and Recreation Center  Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The short-listed design-build teams will be issued a Request for Proposal upon further 
direction from the Town Council. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Construction Costs 
Based on information provided in the SOQs, staff is estimating a 30,000 square foot 
facility at a cost of approximately $225 per square foot.  The total cost for construction 
and furniture, fixtures and equipment would be estimated at an amount not to exceed 
$6,750,000.  There is currently no funding identified for this project in the Town Budget 
for FY15 or the Capital Improvement Plan.  
 
Proposed Recreation Center 
 
Proposed Amenities Include: 

 Gymnasium (1-2 Courts) 
 Indoor Track (3-Lane) 
 Cardio and Strength Training 
 Stretching Area 
 Aerobics/Dance Room 
 Climbing Wall 
 Locker Rooms 
 Social/Gaming Room 
 Kids Club (Child Watch) 
 Reception 
 Administration (2 Offices, 2 Shared Work Stations) 
 Lighted Parking 
 

Annual Expenditure and Revenue Estimates 
 
 Recreation Center 

o Expenditures – Staff is estimating that it will cost approximately $254,000 
for salaries and benefits and $165,150 for operations and maintenance for 
a total of $419,150 annually to operate the facility.  $94,900 was budgeted 
in FY15 to operate the Fitness Center, so the net increase is estimated to 
be $324,250.   

o Revenues – Staff is estimating that we will generate $104,750, or 25% 
cost recovery, from memberships and daily drop-in fees.  It is anticipated 
that this could grow in subsequent years. 

o Net Operating Costs – Estimated to be $314,400 annually. 



Subject: Proposed Fitness and Recreation Center  Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

Summary: 
 
Construction of a Fitness and Recreation Center is estimated at an amount not to 
exceed $6,750,000 and cost up to an estimated $419,150 annually for operations and 
maintenance. 
 
The pending expenditure limitations would have a direct effect on funding construction 
and operational costs.  No funding sources have been identified for this project or 
ongoing operations and maintenance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff will proceed as directed by Town Council; however there are two options to 
consider: 
 
Option #1: Motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to the short-
listed design-build firms for the proposed Fitness and Recreation Center and establish a 
maximum project budget of $6,750,000. 
 
Option #2: Motion to suspend the project indefinitely due to budgetary constraints. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Request for Qualifications with Schedule of Events attached 
SOQ Scoring Summary 
Notice of Design-Build Short List 



Town of Florence 

 

Request for Qualifications 
For Design-Build Services 

Town of Florence  

775 N. Main Street  

P.O. Box 2670  

Florence, Arizona 85132  

(520) 868-7582  

Bryan Hughes, Project Manager



Public Notice 

Town of Florence 

Invitations for Design-Build Services  

Request for Qualifications 

The Town of Florence hereby solicits a Statement of Qualifications for Design-Build 
Services from qualified and experienced firms or individuals for the construction of a 
fitness and recreation center on a portion of an undeveloped 40 acre pad located 
directly west of Town Hall in Florence, AZ 85132. 

To secure a complete copy of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) package, visit the 
Town of Florence website at www.florenceaz.gov/rfp. 

A Statement of Qualifications pre-submittal meeting is scheduled for Friday, October 
10, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the Council Chambers at Florence Town Hall, located at 
775 North Main Street.  Attendance is required for all those planning to submit a 
Statement of Qualifications (SOQ). 

The Town of Florence must receive proposals no later than 3:00 PM, local time, 
Wednesday, October 22, 2014. Mail or deliver your completed Statement of 
Qualifications to the Office of the Town Clerk, Florence Town Hall, 775 North Main 
Street, P.O. Box 2670, Florence, Arizona 85132. No faxed proposals. Failure of the 
proposer to complete all of the requested information may result in rejection of the 
proposal. 

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable accommodation, by contacting the 
504/ADA Coordinator for the Town of Florence at (520)-868-7554 or (520)-868-7502 
(TDD). Please make all requests as early as possible so as to allow time to arrange 
the accommodation. 

The Town of Florence is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. 
 

http://www.florenceaz.gov/rfp.


Design-Build Services 

The Town of Florence hereby solicits Statement of Qualifications for Design-Build 
Services from the qualified and experienced firms for the design and construction of a 
fitness and recreation center on a portion of an undeveloped 40 acre pad located 
directly west of Town Hall in Florence, AZ 85132. 

See Exhibit 1 for a schematic drawing of the location of the project. 

Background 

The Town of Florence was founded in 1866 and is the fifth oldest incorporated 
municipality in Arizona. Florence is a rural community situated in the central portion of 
Pinal County, Arizona about 45 minutes away from the Phoenix and Tucson 
metropolitan areas. Florence, at an elevation of 1,493 feet, has been the county seat 
since its formation in 1875. The current residential population in Florence is 
approximately 9,000. The projected regional growth trend places Florence directly in the 
path of rapid development. 

The Town Council has expressed an interest in the construction of a fitness and 
recreation center to complement other facilities currently under contract and scheduled 
for completion in 2015, including a library and activity center, aquatics center, and 
athletic fields and sport courts. 

Government Operations 

Florence is a full-service council-manager form of government with a mayor, council and 
town manager who oversees the operations of the following departments: 
Administration, Courts, Finance, Fire, Library, Parks and Recreation, Community 
Development, Police, Utilities, and Public Works. 

 

Florence Data 
 Incorporated Area: 62 square miles 

 Municipal Planning Area: 153 square miles 

 Elevation: 1,493 feet above sea level 

 Population: 25,971 

 Infrastructure: 
o Water: Town of Florence and Johnson Utilities 
o Sewer: Town of Florence and Johnson Utilities 
o Streets: Town of Florence and Arizona Department of Transportation 
o Electric: APS and SRP 
o Gas: Southwest Gas 
o Sanitation: Right Away Disposal 

  



Project Description 

The project consists of all aspects associated with the design and construction of a 
recreation center, including all on-site and off-site improvements required to support the 
facility. 
 

Proposed Recreation Center 
 
Proposed Amenities Include: 

 Gymnasium (1-2-courts) 

 Indoor Track (3-Lane) 

 Cardio and Strength Training 

 Stretching Area 

 Aerobics/Dance Room 

 Climbing Wall 

 Locker Rooms 

 Social/Gaming Room 

 Kids Club (Child Watch) 

 Reception 

 Administration (2 Offices, 2 Shared Work Stations) 

 Lighted Parking 

Design Requirements 
The design, character and architectural scale of the building and ancillary 
improvements should generally complement the historic downtown area and be 
consistent with the vision expressed in the Town’s North End Framework Vision Plan 
and the regulatory framework established within the Territory Square Zoning District 
applicable for the subject property. These documents are available at 
www.florenceaz.gov/pz-documents. 

Utilities 
Design shall include all utilities and infrastructure: water, sanitary sewer, drainage, 
telecommunications, electrical, gas, cable, etc. that are necessary for the operation and 
safety of the facility. Any off-site infrastructure (water, sanitary, storm drainage, gas, 
electrical) required for the development of this site and operation of the facility shall 
have been investigated and discussed with appropriate authorities to ensure that 
services to the proposed site can be achieved including roads and streets. 

Pre-Submittal Meeting 
A Statement of Qualifications pre-submittal meeting is scheduled for Friday, October 10, 
2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the Council Chambers at Florence Town Hall, located at 775 
North Main Street.  Attendance is required for all those planning to submit a Statement 
of Qualifications (SOQ). 
  

http://www.florenceaz.gov/pz-documents.


Preliminary Scope of Work 

The following Scope of Work generally describes the consultant services that 
are required, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Pre-Design: 

 Site Visit with Design-Build team and Town of Florence 

 Pre-Design Meeting 

2. Conceptual Design: 

 Conceptual Design, Design Submissions 

 Client Reviews, Comments 

 Review Meetings 

 Revisions Requested by Client 

 Final Conceptual Design Approval by Client 

3. Schematic Design (30% Completion): 

 Schematic Design, Design Submissions 

 Client Reviews, Comments, Review Meetings 

 Revisions Requested by Client 

 Final Schematic Design Submittal 

 Final Schematic Design Approval by Client 

4. Design Development (60% Completion): 

 Design Development, Design Submissions 

 Client Reviews, Comments, Review Meetings 

 Revisions Requested by Client 

 Final Design Development Submittal 

 Final Design Development Approval by Client 

5. Construction Documents (95% Completion): 

 Construction Document Submittals 

 Client Reviews, Comments, Review Meetings 

 Revisions Requested by Client 

 Final Construction Document Submittal 

 Final Construction Document Approval by Client 

6. Permit Documents: 

 Revisions Requested by Client 

 Submission to Town of Florence for Permit Review 
  



7. Pre-Construction: 

 Performing a constructability review 

 Conduct a pre-construction conference with the Town of Florence, Sub-
contractors, and Utility Companies. 

8. Construction: 

 Schedule tracking 

 Track sub-contractor work 

 Maintaining organized photographic records 

 Maintaining as-built notes and drawings 

 Maintaining ASI & RFI logs, submitting questions and tracking decisions 
formally. 

 Managing and tracking change orders and project budgets 

 Submitting progress payments 

 Weekly construction meetings with Town of Florence, and Sub-contractors 

 Punch list walk-through, review and completion 

9. Post Construction: 

 Complete project documentation including but not limited to: Change order 
summary, final detailed budget report, project acceptance documentation, 
contract closeout 

 As-built drawings submitted to Client 

 Training of Town of Florence Personnel 

Project Schedule 

Refer to Exhibit 2 – Schedule of Events.  The Schedule of Events is subject to change 
at the direction of the Town Council. 

Statement of Qualifications Requirements 

The organization of the Statement of Qualifications is intended to be as brief as 
possible while addressing the requested components adequately. 

Submittal: 

One original and seven copies of the Statement of Qualifications must be mailed or 
delivered by the date, time and location identified in the RFP. Submittals are limited to 
forty 8.5” X 11” pages (minimum 12 pt. size text) or graphics. Submittals may be double 
sided. The limitation is a page count limitation, not a sheet count. Failure to comply with 
the page limitation may result in rejection of the proposal. 

Note that the content in the appendix does not need to be included in the total page 
limitation. 

Also please submit one electronic version of the Statement of Qualifications on a CD, 
USB, or disk, using a current version of Word or a PDF File. 
  



Content: 

The Statement of Qualifications must include each of the following sections and 
information. They are not listed here in order of importance, but every effort should be 
made to maintain the same order in the proposals to facilitate comparisons. 
 

1. Cover Letter: List the name of the prime (and supportive) firm(s), and the project 
manager, his/her address, and the telephone, and email information for the 
project. The cover letter shall also identify the firm or prime firm that has the 
authority to negotiate and contractually bind the firm or prime firm (if different 
from the project manager). His or her title, address, telephone, fax, email 
information shall also be provided. The cover letter shall count in the page limit 
identified above. 

 
2. Member Roles and Capabilities: List members of the firm/team selected for this 

project. The project manager and key task managers that will be directly and 
regularly working on this project must be identified, as well as any consultants. 
Briefly describe the directly related project experience of the project manager and 
team members. Include information that describes the role of the team members, 
related project experience (i.e. year project was prepared, budget and project 
duration). Provide a complete resume in the appendix of the proposal. 

 
3. Management Plan: Provide a diagram or outline for the teams proposed 

management strategy outlining oversights, general team member, consultant 
responsibilities, and points of contacts. Provide the name of the Project Manager 
and his/her responsibilities. 

 
4. Subcontractor Selection Plan: Each Statement of Qualifications shall include a 

proposed subcontractor selection plan and a requirement that the proposed 
subcontractor selection plan must select subcontractors based on a combination of 
qualifications and price and shall not select subcontractors based on price alone. 
 

5. Key Issues: Please identify at least four key issues that must be addressed with 
this project and briefly state how your scope of work will resolve these issues in a 
comprehensive manner. 
 

6. Timeline: As part of your Statement of Qualifications, a timeline schedule for the 
project shall be provided. 
 

7. Samples of Work: Provide a minimum of three samples of work that were 
completed for similar projects in scope. Include photos or images and a brief 
description of each sample, including square footage and final construction cost. 
Contact information should be provided for each project listed. Projects ideally 
completed within past five to ten years. 
 

8. References: Include at least three references from directly related projects 
(preferably municipal projects such as recreation centers). Include name, title, 
address, telephone, fax, and email of contact person and name of project. 



9. Appendix: 
 

a. Scope of Work: Include your specific Scope of Work using the same 
format provided in the Preliminary Scope of Work. Include and clarify all 
base components and optional services. Note whether optional services 
are available within the proposed team, or would be performed through 
additional consultants. It is essential that the specific Scope of Work 
addressed in your proposal at least satisfy the Preliminary Scope of Work 
outlined in this RFQ. Failure to comply with these requirements may 
diminish the scoring of your proposal. Your proposals should clearly 
indicate a full understanding of how the project is implemented and 
maintained. Each short listed firm/team is highly encouraged to critically 
review this scope and refine/augment it as necessary. Creatively departing 
from this scope is also encouraged. All deviations from the Preliminary 
Scope of Work shall be summarized in the proposals. 

 
b. Insurance and Bonds: 

 
Employer’s Liability $500,000-1,000,000  

 
General Liability 

a. General Aggregate      $2,000,000 
b. Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $2,000,000 
c. Personal and Advertising Injury    $2,000,000 
d. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury & Property Damage) $2,000,000 
e. Excess or Umbrella Liability 

1) General Aggregate per job   $3,000,000 
per policy year  $5,000,000 

2) Each Occurrence  per job   $3,000,000 
per policy year  $5,000,000 

 
Automobile Liability 

a. Bodily Injury: 
Each Person       $1,000,000 
Each Accident      $1,000,000 

b. Property Damage: 
Each Accident      $1,000,000 

c. Combined Single Limit of     $1,000,000 
 
Contractual Liability 

a. Bodily Injury: 
Each Accident      $2,000,000 
Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 

b. Property Damage: 
Each Accident      $2,000,000 
Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 
Each Accident      $2,000,000 
Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 



 
Workman’s Compensation 

a. Bodily Injury by Accident  each accident $1,000,000 
b. Bodily Injury by Disease  each employee $1,000,000 
c. Bodily Injury by Disease  policy limit  $1,000,000 

 
The Town of Florence requires that a certificate of Liability and Workman’s 
Compensation Insurance be provided with limits of liability and the Town 
of Florence named as additional insured. 

 
c. Bond 

The successful firm shall be required to furnish bonds in the full penal sum 
of the Contract Price covering faithful performance of the Contract and 
payment obligations arising thereunder. Such bonds shall be furnished 
pursuant to the Contract Documents on the date of execution of the 
Contract.” 

 

Evaluation 
Each Statement of Qualifications will be evaluated on the following criteria (100 points 
possible), in order to be selected for an interview: 
 

 Experience of the Project Manager, Designer, General Contractor, the 
organization and the consultants who will do the work (35 points) 

 Consultants' understanding of the Town's needs (20 points) 

 Scope of work (15 points) 

 Clarity and succinctness of the proposal (10 points) 

 Discretionary (10 points) 

 Subcontractor Selection Plan (5 points) 

 Proposal conforms to format (5 points) 

Selection Process 
The Selection Committee will evaluate all valid proposals based on the evaluation 
criteria set forth herein.  The Town may or may not interview any of the firms, based on 
the evaluation scoring, to discuss the proposer’s qualifications, proposed scope of work, 
and other related items.  
 
If interviews are held, then the scoring of the interviews will be evaluated based on the 
following criteria (100 points possible): 
 

 Experience of the Project Manager, Designer, General Contractor, the 
organization and the consultants who will do the work (35 points) 

 Consultants' understanding of the Town's needs (25 points) 

 Scope of work (20 points) 

 Clarity and succinctness of the presentation (10 points) 

 Discretionary (10 points) 
 



If interviews are not held, then proposals will be scored based on the criteria identified in 
the Evaluation section within this RFQ. 
 
Based on scoring criteria identified through the evaluation and possible interview 
scoring, the Selection Committee will make a determination of what proposers, if any, 
qualify to make the Town’s final list.  The final list will contain no less than three firms 
and no more than five firms.   
 
Firms that make the Town’s final list through the initial RFQ process will be invited to 
submit a proposal that includes the firms experience, qualifications, scope of work, 
project budget for design and construction, project schedule, and other relevant 
information.  The Selection Committee will evaluate and score the proposals and then 
select the firm that is best qualified to complete the project.  If the Town is not able to 
negotiate an agreement with the Selection Committee’s top selection, then the Town will 
negotiate a contract with the Selection Committee’s second selection, and so on.  
 
If necessary, interviews will be held at: 
 
Town of Florence 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Date(s) and time(s) to be determined. 
 

Town Budget 

The Town Council has not yet established a budget for this project. 

Deadline 

All copies of the Statement of Qualifications, including one original and six copies, must 
be received and clearly labeled “Town of Florence Fitness and Recreation Center 
Design-Build Services, Attn: Office of the Town Clerk” at the Florence Town Hall, 775 N. 
Main Street, P.O. Box 2670, Florence, Arizona 85132 by 3:00 pm local time on 
Wednesday, October 22, 2014.  Statement of Qualifications may not be faxed nor 
electronically transmitted to the Town. Proposals, which are received after the deadline, 
will not be considered. Submitters must ensure delivery (not postmarking) by the date 
and time indicated above. 

All questions should be submitted to Bryan Hughes by email to 
bryan.hughes@florenceaz.gov no later than Wednesday, October 15, 2014 by 3:00 
pm local time, to ensure major issues and answers are resolved to all groups 
submitting Statement of Qualifications. All questions answered by the Town will be 
posted on the Town’s website at www.florenceaz.gov/rfp. 

The Town of Florence is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. Persons 
with disabilities requesting reasonable accommodations may contact the Town of 
Florence ADA Coordinator at (520)-868-7554 or (520)-868-7502 (TDD) at least 72 
hours in advance. 

mailto:bryan.hughes@florenceaz.gov
http://www.florenceaz.gov/rfp.


Reservation Rights 

The Town of Florence reserves the sole right to evaluate the Statement of 
Qualifications submitted, waive any irregularity, evaluate and select any firm, and/or 
reject any and all Statement of Qualifications in part or in whole. The Town may 
contact the firm during its review of proposals for additional clarification or 
information. 

The firm is entirely responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of this 
Statement of Qualifications. The Town will not reimburse the selected firm for any work 
performed prior to the execution of a contract. 

The Town of Florence may or may not proceed with issuing a Request for Proposals for 
this project following the RFQ process. 
 

Protest Procedure 

Bid protests shall be submitted in writing to: Town Manager, Florence Town Hall, 775 
North Main Street, P.O. Box 2670, Florence, Arizona 85132, phone (520) 868-7500 or 
(520) 868-7502 (TDD Relay) within 72 hours of notification award. Protests must 
contain at a minimum, the name, address, and telephone number of the protester; the 
signature of the protester or its representative and evidence of the authority to sign; a 
detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest including copies of 
relevant data; and the form of relief requested. Within three business days of receipt, 
and after consultation with legal counsel, the Town will respond to the protest. 



EXHIBIT 1 

Schematic Drawing of Project Location 
 
 
  



 EXHIBIT 2 

 

Town of Florence 

Parks and Recreation Department 
 

Proposed Fitness & Recreation Center 
 

Schedule of Events 
 

Selection Schedule  

Issue Request for Qualifications (RFQ) September 30, 2014 

Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) Pre-Submittal 
Meeting October 10, 2014 

Deadline for Questions October 15, 2014 

SOQ Deadline October 22, 2014 

Evaluate SOQs October 23-27, 2014 

  

Town Council Meeting November 3, 2014 

Announcement of Short-Listed Firms and 
Mandatory Technical Proposal Pre-Submittal 
Meeting November 4, 2014 

Mandatory Technical Proposal Pre-Submittal 
Meeting November 12, 2014 

Alternate Technical Concepts Discussions November 17-21, 2014 

Technical and Price Proposals Deadline December 3, 2014 

Evaluate Responsiveness, Oral Interviews, and 
Scoring of Technical Proposals December 4-9, 2014 

Cash Flow and Escrow Documentation Due December 10, 2014 

Public Opening of Price Proposals December 17, 2014 

  

Town Council Meeting January 5, 2015 

Award of Contract January 5, 2015 

  

Notice to Proceed January 12, 2015 

  

Design-Construction Schedule  

Project Kick-off January 12, 2015 

Begin Design Phase (120 days) January 12, 2015 

Begin Construction (240 days) May 12, 2015 

All Submittals Due May 22, 2015 

Project Construction 50% Complete September 9, 2015 

First Walkthrough / Punch-List December 8, 2015 

Project Substantially Complete / Final Walkthrough January 7, 2016 

 
 

Revised 9/30/2014 



P.O. Box 2670 • Florence, Arizona 85132 • (520) 868-7589 • www.florenceaz.gov  

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

 

 

NOTICE OF DESIGN-BUILD SHORT-LIST FOR FITNESS & RECREATION CENTER 

 

 

Date:  November 14, 2014 

 

Subject: RFQ Selection Committee Scoring Results – Fitness & Recreation Center 

 

 

On October 23, 2014, the Town Clerk’s Office documented the receipt of twelve (12) Statements of 

Qualifications (SOQ) for the above referenced project.  The project selection committee reviewed and 

scored the SOQs based on the criteria referenced in the Request for Qualifications and has short-listed 

the five most qualified design-build teams as follows: 

 

1. Haydon Building Corp/Architekton 

2. Low Mountain Construction/Hidell and Associates 

3. Sun Eagle/Breckenridge Group 

4. Adolfson & Peterson Construction/Gabor Lorant Architects 

5. D.L. Withers Construction/Saemisch + De Bella Architects 

 

The short-listed design-build teams will be issued a Request for Proposal upon further direction from the 

Town Council. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 

 

Bryan C. Hughes, CPRE 

Parks and Recreation Director 

http://www.florenceaz.gov/


Summary Scoring

Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) Scoring - Fitness & Recreation Center

Design-Build Team Member #1 Member #2 Member #3 Member #4 Member #5 TOTAL AVG

Points Possible 100 100 100 100 100 500 100

Haydon Building Corp 86 74 96 98 91 445 89

Low Mountain Construction 70 78 90 87 95 420 84

Sun Eagle Corporation 70 92 75 82 87 406 81

Adolfson & Peterson Construction 86 59 87 86 83 401 80

DL Withers Construction 73 70 86 86 83 398 80

CORE Construction 92 43 85 81 89 390 78

FCI Constructors 80 71 77 84 78 390 78

Concord General Contracting 86 84 74 62 73 379 76

Weitz 82 60 76 69 71 358 72

BarkerMorrissey Contracting 70 50 79 69 82 350 70

WE O'Neil Construction 83 33 78 70 69 333 67

Bayley Construction 70 24 73 60 81 308 62

Selection Committee

11/14/2014



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Charles Montoya, Town Manager 

Cc:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 

  Department Heads 

Date:  December 15, 2014 

Re:  Bi-Weekly Update  

Department Updates 
 
Community Development 
 Seven single family home permits for November.  
 Grading and foundation activities underway on the library/aquatics center site. 
 New Inspector getting trained and acclimated. 
 Working on tenant improvements to new Community Development office and 

preparing for office move in January. 
 Working on Johnson Ranch Estates GPA and PUD cases. 
 Having early discussions regarding possible annexations. 
 Helping Caliente update their monument sign (digital reader sign versus existing 

marquee). 
 Working on update to Town’s Floodplain Management ordinance. 
 Staff assisting with 2015 Home Tour event. 
 Working on new subdivision applications for Anthem at Merrill Ranch. 
 Commencing construction review process on new solar farm proposed for Monterra 

project site. 
 
Finance Department 

 Completed final draft and review of CAFR. It is anticipated that the CAFR and audit 
will be presented on December 15, 2014. 

 Completed two assistance to firefighter grant applications. 
 Nearing completion of fulfilling eligibility requirements for first two homeowners 

signed up for housing rehabilitation. 
 
Information Technology Department 

 Planned and quoted the addition of wireless desktop microphones in the Council 
chambers. 

 Installed the new SCADA Wide Area Network to cover all Town utility infrastructures. 
 Worked with National Guard to improve addressing information. 

 
 
 
Library 



 The State Library has informed FCL that our application for SGIA Construction 
funding in the amount of $99,280 has been approved.  The official award letter is to 
follow.  SGIA Construction grants are typically in the $5,000 to $20,000 range, so we 
are quite thrilled to receive the entire amount requested.  These funds will be used in 
the construction of the Children’s collection area of the new library facility. 

 16 people attended a local author panel on November 21st at 5:30 pm.  Authors 
Daniel Pike (“The Wolf of Descarta”), StevieAnne Petitt (“Egos Are Like Farts…: A 
Comedic Approach to Conscious Living”), and Kathy McCoy, PhD (“Purr Therapy:  
What Timmy & Marina Taught Me About Life, Love and Loss”) each spoke for a 
short period, followed by an audience Q&A.  This program was made possible 
through the support of the Friends of the Florence Community Library.   

 1,494 total items were circulated between Saturday, November 22nd and 
Wednesday, November 26th.  121 holds were placed. 230 computer users were 
recorded in the computer lab.  The average computer use session was 45.370 
minutes.  For the week of November 16th – November 22nd, there were 368 wireless 
sessions.  

 2,140 total items were circulated between Saturday, November 15th and Friday, 
November 21st.  188 holds were placed.  425 computer users were recorded.  The 
average computer use session was 47.786 minutes.  For the week of November 8th 
– November 14th, there were 291 wireless sessions.  PCLD has changed the 
wireless report day to Monday, so these statistics will now be one week behind. 

 
Parks and Recreation 

 Staff attended the weekly meeting with the Territory Square – Library/Recreation 
Complex Project Team and Low Mountain Design-Build Team.  All construction 
plans have been submitted for review and additional permits will be issued within the 
next few weeks to continue the construction phase. 

 The Concert in the Park scheduled for Thursday, December 4, at Padilla Park was 
cancelled due to inclement weather.  An additional concert will be added to the 
spring series.  Thank you to Main Street Family Practice for sponsoring this year’s 
concerts. 

 Congratulations to John Nixon, Recreation Coordinator, for successfully completing 
the Certified Parks and Recreation Professional Exam.  Attaining the CPRP 
designation shows that staff have met education and experience qualifications, and 
illustrates a commitment to the profession as well as knowledge and understanding 
of key concepts within parks and recreation. 
 

Police 
 Chief Hughes, Lt. Tryon, Deanna, and Detectives Helsdingen and Gaston attended 

the Grand Opening of the Family Advocacy Center in San Tan Valley. 
 Officers will be participated with Pinal County Sheriff’s Office on 12/05-12/06 for the 

Holiday DUI Taskforce. 
 Officers responded to an explosion/fire at 407 N. Pinal #18.  Officers located (2) 

victims on the property suffering from burns.  FFP responded and extinguished the 
fire; along with treating the burn victims.  Both victims were transported to the Burn 



Unit at MMC. The investigation is on-going and appears to be focused on an 
explosion caused by propane. Detectives are conducting a follow-up investigation. 

 Radar Trailer #1 is located at Sun City Blvd; Radar Trailer #2 is on San Carlos 
Street. 

 Chief Hughes and Deanna attended the AZ Department of Homeland Security East 
Regional Advisory Council Meeting held in Globe.  During the meeting grant funds 
were reallocated.  The Board approved an additional $2,747 for the purchase of the 
Ballistic Shields that was previously awarded to the Department.  

 Sgt. Tatlock attended the AZGOHS DUI Holiday Task Force Kickoff held in Phoenix 
 
Public Works/Utilities 

 Utility and Public Works were recombined on an interim basis awaiting return of 
Wayne Costa. 

 Sun Western Contractor is continuing work on Well 3B. 

 Approval to sign contract with Apache Underground and Excavation scheduled for 
December 15, 2014 Council meeting. Staff met with contractor regarding schedule. 
Expected start date is January 5, 2015. Conflicts with historical home tour mitigated. 

 Currier Construction continuing work on the SWWTP effluent pump station/chlorine 
modifications/administration building project. 

 Staff is continuing work on the lower clarifier at the North plant. New chains, 
sprockets, guide rails and paddle boards are being installed. Work expected to be 
completed in mid-December. 

 Staff has begun to prioritize Public Works projects for design and/or construction. To 
that end, a series of meetings have been set with on-call consultants to determine 
which projects have been assigned to them, scope, contract status, and next steps. 

 Staff completed water valve replacement at GEO prison. 

 Staff installed new fire hydrants at Ruggles and Willow St and Park and 6th St. 
 

 


	December 15, 2014 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6b. Annual Audit for FY 6-30-14
	6c. Quarterly Financial Reports

	7. SPECIAL MEETING
	7a. Resolution No. 1486-14 Expenditure Limitation

	9. CONSENT
	9a. Utility Easement with APS
	9b. Florence Chamber Agreement 2015
	9c. Contract with Apache Underground and Excavation
	9d. FGMHA Special Event Liquor License Apps
	9e. December 1, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes
	9e. December 8, 2014 Councill Meeting Minutes


	10. NEW BUSINESS
	10a. Proposed Fitness and Recreation Center

	11. MANAGER'S REPORT
	11. Manager's Report




